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Paper, book, pencil, glass,

rest in the shade of their names.

... I find myself in the middle of an eye,

watching myself in its blank stare,

I stay and go: I am a pause.

Octavia Paz



Translating Technical  and
Business RegistersLesson 1

Concept of Registers of language:

Read the following sentences, and discuss the different uses of language:

•

•

Our use of language is not an isolated phenomenon. In other words, we use language in a 

particular situation for a particular purpose and addressed to a particular audience. Thus, 

as speakers and writers of language, we use a variety of language each appropriate to a 

specific situation, a specific purpose and a specific audience. 

Remember Mr. Anil Mathur, our senior at school? He's is going to be our new CEO.

 I guess he will be here next month.

Mr. Anil Mathur, a former student of Alexandria High School, will join the company as 

CEO in July.

Register is the technical term for a specific type of language use. In other words, it is a 

subset of a language used for a particular purpose or in a particular social setting. For 

example, a speaker may adhere more closely to prescribed grammar, pronounce words 

ending in -ing with a nasal and refrain from using the word ain't when speaking in a formal 

setting, but the same person could violate all of these prescriptions in an informal setting.  

Register is discourse categorisation, language variation, defined by use not the user.

The term was first used by the linguist Thomas Bertram Reid in 1956 and brought into 

general currency in the 1960s by a group of linguists who wanted to distinguish between 

variations in language according to the user (defined by variables such as social 

background, geography, sex and age), and variations according to use, in the sense that 

each speaker has a range of varieties and chooses from among them at different times. 

The focus is on the way language is used in particular situations, such as legalese or 

mother tongue, the language of a biology research lab, of a news report or of love etc.

Hence, it is clear that the translation of language of registers has to be informed with the 

distinctive features of the Source Language (SL) as well as the Target Language (TL) that 

are appropriate to a particular language use. The distinctiveness  in the language of 

registers such as the registers of law, medicine, science and technology, literature, 

journalism etc. derives from the basic distinction between informal and formal language, 

and, therefore, translation of registers of language should be cognizant of the informal 

and formal characterstics of both languages.

 It is in terms of the degree of the formality of language that technical and business 
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registers are different from other registers. In fact, the difference between informal and 

formal language is both the most simple and the most important distinction that applies to 

different registers of language.  

                                                  

 Grandmother each year Retail outlet

Kid letter/mail    spectacles Refund your payment

child Hand in notice correspondence  Return your call

enquire phone you back  Get your money back annually                             

granny  shop glasses  ask quit 

Granny Grandmother

Phone you back Return your call

Activity 1 : Read the words and phrases given in Box A

Now, complete the following table by filling in words and phrases from Box A

       BOX A

INFORMAL                 FORMAL

318

Activity 2 : Read the sentences given in Box B

Mr. Gupta entered the sales data into the new accounting system.

It was a great and exciting performance.

Our products are custom designed to meet the requirements of our buyers.

He isn't coming to office today.



The members of my team are very nice.

The team members are very cooperative.

Ramesh was hired last month.

I will definitely pass on the desired information to the boss.

The subdomains are oriented perpendicularly.

The machinery is quite costly.

We had a little bit of luck this time.

The slope of the second curve is steeper than the first one.

We had a bit of luck this time. Mr. Gupta entered the sales data 

into the new accounting system.

Complete the following table by filling in sentences from Box B

Informal Formal

Different registers of a particular language can be shown on the scale of formality: to 

what extent a particular register of language is positioned within the continuum of formal 

and informal registers. We can characterise registers as varieties of language viewed 

from the point of view of formality. The spectrum of formality can be divided on the basis 

of the following:

printed language that never changes; for example, the langauge of the Indian 

Constitution.

one-way communication; use of technical vocabulary; exact  semantics and 

important definitions.

In-group friends and acquaintances. No background information provided. 

Ellipsis and slang common. Interruptions common.

Frozen: 

Formal: 

Casual:
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Activity 3 : Read the following extracts, and discuss each on the formality 
spectrum in groups of 4-5:

Different variables that determine register can be identified thus:

•

•

•

•

1. An object at rest tends to stay at rest and an object in motion tends to stay in motion 

with the same speed and in the same direction unless acted upon by an unbalanced 

force.

2. 124 (2) Every judge of the Supreme Court shall be appointed by the President by 

warrant under his hand and seal after consultation with such of the judges of the 

Supreme Court and of the High Courts in the States as the President may deem 

necessary. 

3. “ Then it's settled, you've lost this game”. 

         “How have I lost it?”

          “Then put the piece back in the same square where it was.”

(i) Identify the above extract as frozen, formal and casual.

(ii) Point out the various features of frozen, formal and casual registers as evident from 

the above extracts.

field (the subject matter of the discourse)

 tenor (the participants and their relationships), and 

mode (the channel of communication, e.g. spoken or written). 

elements of language that may vary in different registers — vocabulary, syntax, 

phonology, morphology, pragmatic rules or different paralinguistic features such as 

pitch, volume and intonation in spoken English, or size and speed of sign production 

in a sign language.

Every writing or speech is concerned with a particular subject or issue. All subjects or 

issues cannot be expressed in the same register or we cannot use any register of language 

for any subject or issue at hand. The subject or issue that makes it possible for the use of 

a particular register is what is called the field or subject matter of discourse influencing 

the use of a distinct register. 

A register is determined by the tenor of the discourse in the sense that the participants  

involved in a particular act of writing or speech and the relationships that exist between 

them determine the difference between the various registers of language.

Mode or channel of communication, whether in spoken or written language, is a major 

marker of the characterstics of a register as informal or formal. Technical or business 

registers of language, for instance, wouldn't use the spoken variety of language. 
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The most apparent variables that determines the registers of language are the elements 

of language such as vocabulary, syntax, morphology etc. Every register of language will 

present a selective use of the elements of language very different from any other 

register of language.

In translation of particular texts from Source Language (SL) to the Target Language (TL), 

a translator has to keep in mind the different variables described above that determine 

the register of language.

1-ewy :i esa gh fVIi.kh ds lkFk ykSVk;k tkrk gS fd visf{kr lwpuk igys gh bl dk;kZy; ds i=k 

laú----------------------- fnukad ---------------------- }kjk Hksth tk pqdh gSA

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

2-cnyrk nkSj] fT+kanxh dk u;k vankT+k] u;k igukok] u;k jgu&lgu] lksp&le> dk u;k jax&<ax 

vkSj ,sls esa u, T+kekus dks ukfj;ks ds fy, is'k djrs gSa okf'kax e'khuksa dh ,d laiw.kZ ubZ&fujkyh 

Js.kh] ;gh gS oks ,dek=k Hkkjrh; daiuh tks 15 yk[k ls T+;knk okWf'kax e'khusa csp pqdh gSA blfy, 

rks tc ge dgrs gSa fd Hkkjr esa fcdus okyh gj nks okWf'akx e'khuksa esa ls ,d gekjh gksrh gS&rks 

dksbZ rkT+tqc ugh djrkA 

Changing times, new lifestyles, new ways of dressing, new ways of 

living………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 

………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

3-fdlh Hkh egklEesyu esa vafre fu.kZ; lnSo eaf=keaMy ds gkFk esa jgk gSA 'kkafr ds le; bldh 

dk;Zlwph esa vkus okys vf/dka'k eqn~ns fofHkUu foHkkxksa dh vksj ls vk, gksrs gaSA 'kku dh 

lgt&lkekU; izfØ;k esa jktuhfrd dksfV dh leL;kvksa dk lkeuk fd;k tkrk gS] ubZ 

ifj;kstukvksa ij fopkj fd;k tkrk gS] 'kk;n u, fo/ku dh Hkh vko';drk iM+rh gSA ftl fdlh 

foHkkx dks ns'k ds lkekftd vkSj vfFkZd thou ls okLrk iM+rk gS mlds ikl lq/kj dks dbZ 

ifj;kstuk,¡ gksrh gSa vkSj og bl ckr ds fy, mRlqd gksrh gS fd tc /u vkSj lalnh; le; fey 

tk, rFkk bu lq/kjksa dk dk;Z :i ns fn;k tk,A tc '̂khr ;q¼* ugha pyk

The final decision ……………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

Activity 4 : Read the following extracts and complete their translations:
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……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

4- vEek¡ crkrh gS fd ,d 'kke nknk vk¡xu esa [kkV ij ysVs gq, pqipki vkdk'k esa vHkh&vHkh 

mHkjrs gjuxjk] /zqo vkSj 'kdok rkjksa dks ns[k jgs Fks fd vpkud 'kke dk jaxhu&uhyk vkleku 

fpfM+;ksa ls Hkj x;kA lkjs lalkj dh fpfM+;k¡ ogk¡ vkdk'k esa ikxy gksdj ph[k jgh FkhaA nknk ds 

iSj ij ,d tyeqxkZch fxjhA og [kwu ls rj Fkh] lkjs 'kjhj esa Njsa Fks vkSj xnZu vk/h dV pqdh 

FkhA nknk us vius cUnwd dh uky lkiQ dh] mlesa dkjrwl Hkjs] flj ij ixM+h j[kh vkSj rkykc 

dh rjiQ pys x,A 

Mother explained that one evening ………………………………………………………………………… 

………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..

5- ;ksa rks vkst+ksu lkjs ok;qeaMy ij NkbZ gS ij bldk osQanzhdj.k ìFoh ls yxHkx chl ls rhl 

fdyksehVj dh Å¡pkbZ ij lerkieaMy ;k mlosQ fupys fgLls esa [kkl rkSj ls gSA ysfdu ;fn 

gok ls lkjh vkst+ksu fudky yh tk, rks mldh dqy feykdj rhu feyhehVj eksVh ijr cu 

ik,xhA rqyukRed ǹf"V ls dgsa rks lkekU; ncko ij oqQy ok;q&lagfr dh vkB fdyksehVj eksVh 

ijr cusxhA

Ozone is spread all over………………………………………………………………………………………… 

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………
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Activity 5 : Point out the various determinants of 'register' in the above extracts:

Field 

Tenor

Mode

Language

Extract 1 Extract 2 Extract 3 Extract 4 Extract 5
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Activity 6 : Work in groups of 4-5. Collect newspapers of one week. Make cuttings 
of different 'registers' from the newspapers, and write an essay on different 
determinants of the 'register' on the basis of your analysis of the cuttings.

Activity 7 : Read in groups the following extracts and complete the translation 
given  below.

Translation: 

Every use of a language foregrounds a certain 'register'. It is not surprising, therefore, to 

see that the language of advertisements is different from the language of sermons, or the 

language of medical science is different from the language of poetry. There is a great 

variety of literary and non-literary 'registers'. Translation must, therefore, understand 

the specificities of the language of medicine, of law, of physics, of cinema, of business 

etc. 

1- vuqKfIr/kjh ;g opucU/ djrk gS fd og bl djkj dh rkjh[k ls ik¡p o"kZ esa ;k mlds iwoZ 

mDr iqLrd dk mDr jkT;{ks=k esa mDr Hkk"kk esa vuqokn djsxk vkSj ;k mls izdkf'kr djsxk 

vkSj@;k mlds vuqokn vkSj izdk'ku dh O;oLFkk djus ds fy, vU; O;fDr;ksa dks izkf/Ñr 

djsxkA ;fn vuqKfIr/kjh mDr vof/ ;k ijLij lgefr ls c<+kbZ xbZ vof/ ds Hkhrj ,slk djus 

esa vliQy jgrk gS rks esa fn;s x, lc vf/dkj] dksbZ vkSj lwpuk fn;s fcuk LoRo/kjh dks 

izfrofrZr gks tk,¡xsA

The licensee ……………translate and /or publish and/or authorize others to do so and 

/or arrange for the translation and publication of the said work in the said language 

in the said territory as aforesaid on or before five years from…………………………………. 

If the licensee fails to do so within the said period or any agreed extended period all 

rights conveyed in this Agreement shall ……………………… without further notice.

2-dj nkrkvksa ds fy, vk; dh fooj.kh lc izdkj ls iw.kZ dj nkf[ky djuk vko';d gSA bl lac/ 

esa vkidh lgk;rk ds fy, dqN egRoiw.kZ ckrksa dh tk¡p lwph uhps nh xbZ gSA Ñi;k bl lwph dh 

izR;sd en dks i<s+ fiQj bls Lo;a rS;kj dh xbZ vk; dh fooj.kh ls feyk,¡ vkSj ns[ksa fd D;k vkius 

fufnZ"V vko';drkvksa dks iwjk fd;k gSA

 It is necessary for a Tax-Payer to ………………………..complete in all respects. To assist 

you in this matter, a ……………………………………. of the some of the important items is 

given below. Please read each item of this list, refer to the return of income 

prepared by you and check whether you have complied with the indicated 

requirements.
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3- ml g¡lh ls pkSaddj ikl gh fdlh ifjUns us vius ij iQM+iQM+k,A Hkhrj dh og deku fdlh 

us fiQj <hyh dj yhA

eSa pqipki mudh rjiQ ns[kdj eqLdjk;k FkkA lkeus] ?kkVh ds nwljh rjiQ >juk fxj jgk FkkA 

fi?kyh gqbZ pk¡nhA os vius gkFk NqM+kdj vkxs fcNh pV~Vkuksa ij p<+ x;h Fkha] & ,s ,s b/j vkvks] 

;gk¡ cSBsaxs 

?kkVh osQ bl rjiQ] dkiQh vkxs dh rjiQ fudyh gqbZ pV~Vku osQ fcydqy vf[kjh fljs ij ge 

nksuksa cSB x,A >juk vc iwjh rjg fn[kykbZ ns jgk FkkA ?kkVh esa cgqr uhps 'kk;n fdlh cM+h&lh 

pV~Vku ij fxjrk gqvk og csfglkc ikuh vkSj lc dqN Hkwydj mlls caqjh rjg ls fpiVh gqbZ 

pkn¡uhA pV~Vku ls Vdjkdj fc[kjrk] miQurk vkSj epyrk gqvk ikuh] ftls fiQj pk¡nuh viuh 

ckSNkjksa ls <d ysrh FkhA vkSj ml /q¡/yds ls dqN nwj gVdj tc nksuks ckgj fudyrs Fks] rks Fkdku 

ls pwj] ,d&nwljs esa ?kqys&gq,&lsA fiQj dqN nwj tkdj nksuksa ,d unh esa cgus yxrs FksA

Her laughter started …………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

still in real each other's arm, they……………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

4-:i, vkSj ikmaM dh fofu;e nj dkiQh le; ls fLFkj cuh gqbZ gSA ;g ns'k dh vFkZO;oLFkk ds 

fy, Bhd laosQr gSA

The rupee…………………………… against the pound has been stable for quite some time. 

This is good indication for the country's economy.

5-¶fo'o LokLF; laxBu us vkS"kf/&fuHkZjrk dks ekufld vFkok 'kkjhfjd voLFkk vFkok nksuksa dh 

fuHkZjrk osQ :i esa ifjHkf"kr fd;k gSA vkS"kf/&fuHkZjrk O;lu ds fy, izfrLFkkfir gks ldrh gS 

D;ksafd ;g mu lHkh vkS"kf/;ksa dk vkoj.k djrh gS tks vkòfÙktU; vkpj.k (nksgjkbZ xbZ 

O;oLFkk) dh bPNk vFkok vko';drk esa O;kIr gSA̧

The World Health Organization has defined ………………………… as “ a state of psychic 

(mental) or physical (bodily) dependence or both, on a drug arising in a person 

following……………………………………… of that drug on a periodic or continuous basis. 

Drug dependence can be………………………………………………  since it covers all the drugs 

which give rise to a desire or need for repeated administration.

6-,aVhxqvk esa vkWLVªsfy;k ds lkFk ik¡pos vkSj vafre fØdsV VSLV ds rhljs fnu dk [ksy lekIr gksus 

ds le; oSLV bafMt us nwljh ikjh es fcuk fodsV [kks, nks ju cuk fy, FksA 
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blls igys vkWLVªsfy;k dh Vhe] ,d fodsV ij 6 ju ds dy ds Ldksj ls nwljh ikjh vkxs 

[ksyrh gqbZ] 265 ju ij vkmV gks xbZA vkWLVªsfy;k dh nwljh ikjh dh fo'ks"krk] ekdZ Vsyj dh 

'kkunkj cYysckth FkhA mUgksus 144 ju cuk,A ;g muds fØdsV thou dk lkrok¡ 'krd FkkA oSLV 

bafMt dh vksj ls okY'k us pkj] vEczkst us rhu] ek'kZy us nks vkSj isVjlu us ,d f[kykM+h vkmV 

fd;kA oSLVbafMt dks eSp thrus osQ fy, 453 ju dh vko';drk gS tcfd [ksy ds lHkh iwjs nks 

fnu ckdh gSA vkt vodk'k gSA vc rd dh ju la[;k bl izdkj gS%

vkWLVªsfy;k & 403 vkSj 265 ju

oSLVbafMt & 214 vkSj fcuk fodsV [kks, 2 juA

6. While playing against …………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

(ii) Identify the distinct registers  of language in the above extracts by filling in the table 

below with the appropriate serial number of the extracts. 

(iii) Write down in the blank spaces in the table the lexical and syntactic features or 

other linguistic elements appropriate to each 'register', as becomes evident from the 

extracts given above. 

Legal Scientific Journalistic Literary Official Business
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Legal Scientific Journalistic Literary Official Business
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End of Lesson-Review Questions 

1. Comprehension

2. Vocabulary- Explain the following terms and concepts

 

a. What is register of language?

b. How are situation, purpose and audience relevant in the making of a particular 

register of language?

c. Is register about language use or language user? Comment.

d. In what way can the language of a biology research lab and the language of marriage 

rituals be called different 'registers' of language?

e. What is the difference between formal and informal language?

f. What are the variables that determine the registers of a language?

 

a. subset of a language

b. discourse categorisation

c. language variation according to use

d. legalese

e. formal language 

f. informal/ casual  language 

g. frozen language 

h. degree/scale of formality

i. technical 'register'

j. business 'register'

k. discourse

l.  field of discourse

m. 'tenor' as related to language use

n. mode of discourse

o. syntax

p. morphology

q. phonology

r. paralinguistic features
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s. pitch, volume, intonation of language

t. sign language

(i) Read the paragraph given below.

(ii) Complete the translation using the words given in the box.

(iii) Answer the questions that follow.

lkekU; tho dh èR;q ds ckn mlosQ ckn mlds 'kjhj dk vi?kVu gks tkrk gS rFkk og lekIr gks tkrk 

gSA ijarq dHkh&dHkh tho vFkok mlds dqN Hkkx ,sls okrkoj.k esa pys tkrs gSa ftlds dkj.k budk 

vi?kVu iwjh rjg ls ugha gks ikrkA mnkgj.k ds fy,] ;fn dksbZ èr dhV xeZ feV~Vh esa lw[k dj dBksj 

gks tk, rFkk mlesa dhV osQ 'kjhj dh Nki lqjf{kr jg tk,A tho ds bl izdkj ds ifjjf{kr vo'ks"k 

thok'e dgykrs gSaA

ge ;g dSls tku ikrs gSa fd thok'e fdrus iqjkus gSa\ bl ckr osQ vkdyu osQ nks ?kVd gSaA ,d gS 

lkis{kA ;fn ge fdlh LFkku dh [kqnkbZ djrs gSa vkSj ,d xgjkbZ rd [kksnus ds ckn gesa thok'e feyus 

izkjaHk gks tkrs gSa rc ,slh fLFkfr esa ;g lkspuk rdZlaxr gS fd ìFoh dh lrg ds fudV okys thok'e 

xgjs Lrj ij ik,saxs] thok'e dh vis{kk vf/d u;s gSaA nwljh fof/ gS iQkWfly MsfVax ftlesa thok'e esa 

ik, tkus okys fdlh ,d rRo ds fofHkUu leLFkkfudksa dk vuqikr ds vk/kj ij thok'e dk 

le;&fu/kZj.k fd;k tkrk gSA ;g tkuuk jkspd gksxk fd ;g fof/ fdl izdkj dk;Z djrh gSA

Usually when ………………………… die, their bodies get………………………… and are lost. 

But every now and then, the body, at least some parts of it, may exist in the 

environment that does not let it decompose completely. If a dead insect gets caught 

in hot mud, for example, it will not decompose as soon, and the mud will ultimately 

become hard and retain the impression of the body parts of the insect. All such 

preserved traces of ………………………………… are called fossils. The age of the fossils 

can be determined …………………………………………………………………….of estimation 

.…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

…………………………….The second way of dating fossils is by detecting the ratios of 

different ………………………. of the same element in the.….….….………… material.

organisms,       decomposed,    living organisms,     isotopes,     fossil 

(i) In what way do the above paragraphs belong to a specific register?

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

3. Application 
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(ii) Point out the vocabulary appropriate to technical register in the above paragraphs? 

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 

………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….

(iii) Are there grammatical  features like passives and nominalizations in the above 

paragraphs? If yes, do they point to a specific use of language?

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

(iv) Why the expression  dating of fossils have an identical Hindi equivalent  

fossil dating?

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

 (i) Read the following report

 (ii) Answer the questions that follow:

Kishore - promoted Capital Holdings has received the regulatory go-ahead from 

Sebi for its intial public offer, estimated to raise between 400- 500 crore.Market 

regulator has issued its regulations on the draft prospectus for the IPO of the 

Future Capital, the non-banking financial business arm of Future group, clearing 

the way for the issue in early 2008, sources close to the development said on 

Friday. In its draft red herring prospectus filed with the Sebi in September, 

Capital had offered to issue 64.22 lakh equity shares of Rs 10 face value at a price 

to be decided through the book building process.

The company has proposed to list the shares on the NSE and BSE. The shares 

offered in the IPO would constitute about 10% of the company's post-issue 

capital. Kotak Capital, En Securities, M Financial and BS Securities have been 

appointed as the book-running lead managers to the issue.

a. Which  register would you describe the above report? Why?     

……………………………………………………………………………………….………….………….….….……….…

……………………………………………………………………………………….………….………….….….……….…

b. Is the report addressed to a specific audience or generally to all? Explain.

……………………………………………………………………………………….………….………….….….……….…

……………………………………………………………………………………….………….………….….….……….…

4. Writing Tasks- for your Portfolio

Future Capital IPO gets Sebi nod
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c. Pick out the terms and expressions specific to the relevant register

……………………………………………………………………………………….………….………….….….……….…

……………………………………………………………………………………….………….………….….….……….…

d. Pick out the terms and expressions in the above report that cannot be translated 

and hence have to be transliterated.

……………………………………………………………………………………….………….………….….….……….…

……………………………………………………………………………………….………….………….….….……….…

(i) Make a list of specific terms and technical/business vocabulary.

(ii) Translate the terms and vocabulary in hindi, and share and compare with the 

translation of the other groups.

(iii) Translate the entire report into hindi.

(a) Choose a passage from   

(i) a poem

(ii) a short story

(iii) a newspaper report

(iv) an advertisement

(v) a descriptive passage from a science magazine.

(vi) a descriptive passage from a business magazine.

(vii) a descriptive passage from an economic and political weekly

(b) Read them one after the other.

(c) Jot down in your notebook the specific situation, specific purpose and specific 

audience implied in the different passages.

(d) Write down the distinctiveness of lexical, syntactic and grammatical features in 

each passage.

(e) Write about your overall impression of the different registers.

5. Read in group s of 5-6  the above report.

6. Work in group s of 5-6
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Features  of    
TECHNICAL RegistersLesson 2

Technical translation is very necessary as scientific and technical knowledge must be 

made availbale to the user of language other than the language in which the scientific or 

technical knowledge  are  first written.  The purpose of technical writing is to 

communicate clearly information such as concepts, instructions, results, reports or 

proposals.  One of the main differences between technical translation and literary 

translation is that the former is apparently non-cultural. The benefits of technology are 

not confined to one speech community, and therefore, the importance of technical 

translation. Technical translation is different from other forms of translation in terms of 

the terminology. A technical or scientific text is most obvious in its use of terms which are 

very specific to its field of knowledge. 

jklk;fud lehdj.k dks vf/d lwpukiw.kZ cukus osQ fy, vfHkdkjdksa rFkk mRiknksa ds jklk;fud lw=k ds lkFk mudh 

HkkSfrd voLFkk dks Hkh n'kkZ;k tkrk gSA vfHkdkjdksa rFkk mRiknksa ds xSl] nzo] tyh; rFkk Bksl voLFkkvksa dks Øe'k% 

(g), (l). (aq) rFkk (s)  ls n'kkZ;k tkrk gSA vfHkdkjd ;k mRikn tc ty esa ?kksy osQ :i esa mifLFkr gksrs gSa rc ge 

fy[krs gSaA

vc larqfyr lehdj.k (1-9) bl izdkj gksxk%

3Fe(s) + 4H O(g) " Fe O (s) + 4H (g)2 3 4 2

(i) Underline the specific scientific terminologies in the above Source Text. 

(ii) Classify the vocabulary in the above paragraph as technical/scientific and non 

technical/scientific by filling in the following table: 

jklk;fud voLFkk

Activity 1 : Read the following paragraph:

Technical/Scientific Non-technical/non-scientific
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(iii) Translate the above paragraph into English using the terms given in the following 

box:

Chemical equation, reactants, chemical formulae, gaseous, 

aqueous, notations, balanced

Technical language and its translation is marked by specific grammatical features such as 

passives, third persons, empty verbs, and present tenses. These language features are an 

important convention of technical register.  

Loiks"kh tho dh dkcZu rFkk ÅtkZ dh vko';drk,¡ izdk'k la'ys"k.k }kjk iwjh gksrh gSA ;g og izØe gS 

ftlesa Loiks"kh ckgj ls fy, inkFkksZa dks ÅtkZ lafpr :i esa ifjofrZr dj nsrk gSA ;s inkFkZ dkcZu 

MkbZvkWDlkbM rFkk ty ds :i esa fy, tkrs gSa tks lw;Z ds izdk'k rFkk DyksjksfiQy dh mifLFkfr esa 

dkcksZgkbMªsV ikS/ksa dks ÅtkZ iznku djus esa iz;qDr gksrs gSaA vxys vuqHkkx esa ge vè;;u djsaxs fd ;g 

dSls gksrk gSaA

Carbon and energy needs of the autotrophic organism are satisfied by 

photosynthesis. Photosynthesis is the process through which autotrophs take 

in substances from the outside and convert them into stored forms of energy. 

This material is taken in the form of carbon dioxide and water which is 

converted into carbohydrates in the presence of sunlight and chlorophyll. 

Carbonhydrates are utilized for providing energy to the plant. 

(i) Underline the passives in the above paragraph. 

(ii) Why are passives used in technical register as in the above translation.

(iii) Why is present tense used in technical register as in the translation above. 

(iv) Why is technical register objective? In other words, comment on the use of third 

person in the above paragraph.

The language of technical communication and translation is free from emotive 

expressions, connotations, and sound-emphasis and figurative language. What makes the 

translation of scientific and technical texts different from the translation of literary texts 

is the probabilty of one to one correspondence for the concepts and terms. Since the 

scientific concepts are explained and the technical terms are used in unqualified 

objective terms, it becomes easy for the translator to arrive at the corresponding 

Activity 2 : Read the following passage:

Now read the English rendering of the above:
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equivalents and to use them in all occurences wherever necessary. Unlike in the case of 

literary texts, the question of interpretation never arises. The emotive and cultural 

implications of the literary texts are absent altogether.

og xfeZ;ks dh ,d [kqyh vkSj uje jkr Fkh--- ,d fojkV] cuSys tUrq dh rjg [+kkeks'k--- tks fnu&Hkj dh 

Fkdku ds ckn viuh ek¡an esa lewph nsg iQSykdj lks x;k gksA

ilhuk lw[k jgk FkkA eSaus Hkjiwj lk¡l yh ,d ckj--- nks ckj--- gYdk&lk iNrkok gksrk gS--- eSa fgLdh 

NksM+dj pyk vk;k Fkk--- bl le; ;fn og esjh nsg ds Hkhrj gksrh eSa fiQj lk¡l [khaprk gw¡--- dk'kA eSa 

cM+h lM+d NksM+dj ,d l¡djh ysu esa pyk vk;k gw¡A--- vDlj xfy;ksa ds uqDdM+ ij vkWVkse'khusa yxh 

jgrh gSaA

eSa :d tkrk gw¡ u] ;g Mj ugha gSA eSa cgqr 'kkar gw¡ fliQZ ,d B.Mh&lh phT+k esjh jh<+ dh gM~Mh ij 

fiQly jgh gSA

lHkh tho tSls fd ikS/s] tUrq lw{etho ,oa ekuo rFkk HkkSfrd dkjdksa esa ijLij vU;ksU;fØ;k gksrh gS 

rFkk izÑfr esa larqyu cuk, j[krs gSaA fdlh {ks=k ds lHkh tho rFkk okrkoj.k ds vtSo dkjd la;qDr 

:i ls ifjra=k cukrs gSaA

It was a soft, ……………….………………. wild beast lying snugly warm in its lair 

………………………………………………………………………………………….There was a nagging sense 

of regret …………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 

Usually, there are automachines at street corners. …………………………………….……………. 

I was quite calm. Only there was something cold sliding down my spine.

Activity 3 : Read the following passages

Passage A

Passage B

Now complete the following translation of the passage, and answer the questions 
that follow :

Translation of Passage A: 
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Translation of Passage B

All organisms ……………………………………………. micro-organisms and human beings 

……………….……………….……………….……………….……………………………………….………………maintain 

……………….……………….nature. All the ……………….……………….…………….……………………………

……………….………………. with the non-living ……………….……………………………….……………….……… 

(i) List the contrastive features of literary and technical register as obvious from the 

above paragraphs.

(ii) Is technical register connotative? Comment with examples from the above 

paragraphs, both in original and translation.

(iii) Comment on one-to-one equivalence of concepts and terms between the Source 

Text and the Target Text of the technical register above. Is this possible in the case of 

the literary register?

(iv) How  is the interpretation of a technical register different from that of a literary 

register in the translation process?

(v) Do cultural implications play any role in the translation of technical register? Give 

examples.

But there are a few problems. There are codes, symbols and certain technical terms that 

cannot be translated but only transliterated. On the other hand, there are concepts and 

terms for which the translator needs to coin new terms. As compared with the Source 

Language (SL), there might be inadequate corresponding equivalents in the Target 

Language (TL). Any attempt to find the equiavalents for the terms of the Source Text in 

the Target Language where none exists may end up in fiasco. These words are to be 

transliterated as they are universally accepted terms such as watt, volt, metre, ampere 

etc. Transliteration of such words or terms will avoid the confusion of the target audience 

while they come across them in the translation of different texts on science.

However, there are words and technical terms for which the translator may look for 

equivalents in the Target Language, for example, diskette, input, gate, table monitor etc. 

however, the translator has to coin the exact equivalents, which will be possible if he/she 

correctly interprets and understand the terms in the Source Text. 

Atom is the smallest indivisible particle of matter, i.e. something that cannot be 

divided; it is the smallest particle still characterizing a chemical element.An atom 

consists of a dense nucleus of positively charged protons and electrically neutral 

neutrons, surrounded by a much larger electron cloud consisting of negatively 

Questions

Activity 4 : Read the following extract and answer the questions that follow :
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charged electrons. An atom is electrically neutral if it has the same number of protons 

as electrons. The number of protons in an atom defines the chemical element to which 

it belongs, while the number of neutrons determines the isotope of the element.

(i) Write down technical words from the above paragraph 

(ii) Make a list of the technical words and expressions from the above paragraph that 

can be translated.

(iii) Make a list of technical words and expressions which cannot be translated, and 

which need to be transliterated in the Target Language (TL)

(iv) Briefly comment on  the special use of language in the above paragraph which 

categorizes it as technical 'register'.

The most critical problem in technical translation is the correct interpretation of 

technical terms. The technical terms in the ST are mostly context free, and that makes it 

even more difficult to understand them accurately. In some cases literal translation may 

be dangerous because one term may have more than one meaning. Though good writers of 

technical texts follow certain standardization by maintaining a single one-to-one 

relationship between a referent and its name.

The clear communication of quantitative information is very important in scientific and 

technical literature and graphical representation is often the best method for displaying 

such data. Therefore, it is important to translate the graphical representations 

accurately. 

Abbreviations and symbols are common in technical literature and it is important to put 

them exactly in the translated text.

Technical disciplines often develop a terminology that is unique to their subject area.  

Technical dictionaries define words used exclusively in a discipline, or common words that 

have a special meaning within a discipline. Therefore, translator has to choose right 

method or kind of translation to render the technical terms in another language.

Foreign technical or scientific words, unique to a particular discipline, may not be found 

in a regular translation dictionary. Specialized discipline related translation dictionaries 

are available to translate these terms. A large number of translation dictionaries are 

available online. 
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Machine Translation technique in the field of Technical Translation

Machine Translation tools are based on advanced computational linguistic analysis. The 

translation engine effectively analyzes source documents to output the translation draft. 

The machine translation tools of today are quite affordable and available for almost any 

standard computer platform. The benefits one could potentially gain from using the MT 

systems, depends on a number of factors, not least the nature and qualities of your 

original source document. To ensure the best outcome, the source text must be free of 

typographical  errors, be grammatically correct, have simple and clear sentence 

structure, and preferably, be free of colloquial expressions or jargon. You will find the 

machine translation extremely efficient for a variety of objectives: when you need to get 

the general meaning of a document, article, business letter or the like, and when 

screening documents to identify the ones in need of more accurate human translation; for 

conveying simple commands or instructions.
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End of the Lesson- Review Questions

1. Comprehension

2. Vocabulary- explain the following terms and concepts

3.  Application 

(a) What is technical 'register'?

(b) Describe the importance of technical translation?

(c) What is the purpose of technical translation?

(d) What is the difference between technical and literary translation?

(e) What are the grammatical features of technical 'register'?

 (f) What is  transliteration? 

(g) What is the difference between transliteration and translation?

(h) What is machine translation?

(i) How important is machine translation in the field of technical translation?

(a) Technical translation as a non-cultural construct.

 (b) Field of knowledge

(c) Speech community

(d) Emotive expressions 

(e) Objective terms

(f) Notion of 'equivalents'in translation

(i) Read the following paragraph

(ii) Read the prompt and complete the translation using the terminologies from the box 

given

(iii) Answer the questions that follow

{kqnka=k dkcksZgkbMªV] izksVhu rFkk olk ds iw.kZ ikpu dk LFky gSA bl dk;Z ds fy, ;g ;Ñr rFkk vXuk'; ls 

lzko.k izkIr djrh gSA vek'k; ls vkus okyk Hkkstu vEyh; gS vkSj vXU;k'kf;d ,atkbeksa dh fØ;k ds fy, 

mls {kkjh; cuk;k tkrk gSA ;Ñr ls lzkfor fiÙkjl bl dk;Z dks djrk gS] ;g dk;Z olk ij fØ;k djus ds 

vfrfjDr gSA {kqnzka=k esa olk cM+h xksfydkvksa ds :i esa gksrk gS ftlls ml ij ,atkbe dk dk;Z djuk eqf'dy 

gks tkrk gSA fiÙk yo.k mUgsa NksVh xksfydkvksa es [kafMr dj nsrk gS ftlls ,atkbe dh fØ;k'khyrk c<+ tkrh gSA 
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;g lkcqu dk eSy ij beYlhdj.k dh rjg gh gS ftlds fo"k; esa ge igys esa p<+ pqds gSaA vXU;k'k; 

vXU;k'kf;d jl dk lzko.k djrk gS ftlesa izksVhu ds ikpu ds fy, fVªfIlu ,atkbe gksrk gS rFkk beYlhÑr 

olk dk ikpu djus ds fy, ykbist ,atkbe gksrk gSA {kqnzka=k dh fHkfÙk esa xzafFk gksrh gS tks vka=kjl lzkfor djrh 

gSA blesa mifLFkr ,atkbe var esa izksVhu dks vehuh vEy] tfVy dkcksZgkbMªsV dks Xyqdkst+ esa rFkk olk dks olk 

vEy rFkk fXyljkWy esa ifjofrZr dj nsrs gSaA

The small intestine is the place where the complete digestion of 

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

secretion,     acidic,       pancreatic,      bile-juice,        globules,    

bile-salts,       trypsin,       lipase,        glands,

I. What are the characterstics of technical 'register' in the passage given above?       

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

II. What problems do you face in the translation of the above passage? Are these 

problems related to understanding the technical content of the passage?

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

III. From your experience of having done the translation of literary registers what are 

the different problems  you think the translation of technical registers poses?  

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

IV. Explain the significance of transliteration in the context of your translation of the 

above paragraph.

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………
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……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

V. Can complete equivalence between the two texts be achieved in the translation 

of technical texts? Explain.

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

 

(i) Read the following paragraph on Ozone Layer and its depletion.

vkst+ksu 'O ' ds v.kq vkWDlhtu ds rhu ijek.kqvksa ls curs gSa tcfd lkekU; vkWDlhtu ftlds fo"k; esa ge 3

izk;% ppkZ djrs gSa ds v.kq esa nks ijek.kq gksrs gSaA tgk¡ vkWDlhtu lHkh izdkj ds ok;fod thoksa ds fy, 

vko';d gS] ogha vkst+ksu ,d ?kkrd fo"k gSA ijarq ok;qeaMy ds Åij Lrj esa vkst+ksu ,d vko';d izdk;Z 

laikfnr djrh gSA ;g lw;Z ls vkus okys ijkcSaxuh fofdj.k ls ìFoh dks lj{kk iznku djrh gSA ;g ijkcSaxuh 

fofdj.k thoksa ds fy, vR;ar gkfudkjd gSA mnkgj.k% ;g xSl ekuo esa Ropk dk dSalj mRiUu djrh gSaA

(i) Read the following translation of the passage:

Ozone( O3) by three atoms of oxyzen is a molecule formed. At the highher levels of 

ozone performs the atmosphere however an essential function. For example, 

damaging to atmosphere is highly this radiation, to cause skin cancer it is known in 

human beings. Radiation from the sun from ultraviolet (UV)  from earth it shields of 

the surface. While O2 is essential for all forms of life which we normally refer to as 

oxygen aerobic.

(i) As is obvious in the above translation, both the word order and sentence order have 

been disturbed. Rewrite the translated paragraph in the correct order of words and 

sentences.

(ii) What principles of technical writing and technical translation would you enumerate 

from your experience of reading and participation in the translation of technical 

register?

3. Writing Tasks- for your Portfolio
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4. Work in groups of 5-6

(i) Pick out a report or article from a science magazine. 

(ii) Underline the lexical, grammatical and other features that characterize it as 

technical register.

(i) Attempt a collective translation of the piece.

(ii) On the basis of your experience of translating it, write in 100-150 words about 

significance of technical translation.
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Forms of
Lesson 3 Technical Translation

342

Every society seeks its human resource to have the knowledge of science and technology. 

Scientific and technical discourse is the most important field of knowledge. Hence, good 

translation of the different forms of technical register is required. As science and 

technology is developing so is their translation. Technical/scientific register presents a 

wide range of challenges to a translator, such as register-specific words, sentence pattern, 

technical and conceptual expression. Technical translators should have considerable 

knowledge about all major forms of technical register and skill in communicating them. 

For translation of the various forms of technical register certain facts should be 

considered:

(i) The Target language should possess the technical vocabulary. Or else the 

translator has to find an equivalent of the conceptual terms of the Source Text 

(ST) by creating an expression in terms of the formal register of the Target Text 

(TT).

(ii) The translator should have knowledge about the technical or scientific register, 

and should also have a clear understanding of the various forms of 

technical/scientific register.

(iii) The translator should refrain from using casual or literary language.

(iv) Translation should be clear, precise and simple.

(a) Read the following process description

(b) Translate it using words given in the box

(c) Answer the questions that follow

,d 'kaDokdkj ÝykLd ;k ij[kuyh esa oqQN nkus nkj ftad yhft,A

blesa ruq gkbMªksDyksfjd vEy ;k lY;qfjd vEy feyk nhft, (fp=k 1-2) 

lko/kuh % vEy dk bLrseky lko/kuh ls dhft,A

D;k tLrs ds nkuksa ds vklikl dqN gksrk fn[kkbZ ns jgk gS\

'kaDokdkj ÝykLd ;k ij[kuyh dks Li'kZ dhft,A D;k blds rkieku esa dksbZ ifjorZu 

gqvk gS\

Activity 1

•

•

•

•
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•

•

•

•

Take a few zinc…………………………………………………………………………………………………

Add……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

Do you………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

Touch the …………………………………………………………………………………………………………

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

(i) Does the process description reveal its own specific form? If yes, should the 

translator of scientific process description be aware of it?

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

(i) What are the words and expressions that can be literally transferred to the Target 

Text (TT)? Give three examples.

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

(i) Why are such words suitable for literal transference?

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

(i) What differences in language pattern did you discover in the Source Text (ST) and the 

Target Text (TT)?

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

A process description is written for the readers to learn about the action in question. It 

may be written to examine the photosynthesis of plants, the migration of animals, or the 

performance of scientific experiment.  The reader is actually asked to perform an action, 

based on the written instructions.

A technical translator has to understand the structure of the process description. He has to 

have an understanding this structure both in the Source Language (Source Language) and 

the Target Language (TL). Generally, this form of technical register involves breaking up of 

the whole process up into smaller stages, and describes each stage in order. If the process 



mvr = 
nh
¡2

 (tgka n = 1, 2, 3, ...) 
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is part of a continuing cycle, he or she has to mention it. So in the translation of process 

description, the larger structure of the Target Language (TL) has to be broken into smaller 

'action units' and restructured.  

(i) Read the following report.

(ii) Complete its translation using the words and expressions given in the box.

(iii) Answer the questions that follow.

(Structure of Atom and Origin of Spectra)

1- ijek.kq dk jnjiQksMZ ekWMy &

(1)ijek.kq dk nzO;eku ,oa leLr /u xq.kt gS vFkkZr 

(2)fuEu d{kk essa vkSj blh izdkj mPp d{kk ls fuEu d{kk esa laØe.k djrs le; bySDVªkssu ,d 

fuf'pr ifjek.k dh ÅtkZ dk vo'kks"k.k vFkok mRltZu Øe'k djrk gS&

Hkkjr esa ijek.kq ÅtkZ vkSj blls lEca¼ {ks=kksa esa vuqla/ku ,oa fodkl ds pkj egRoiw.kZ laLFkku gS &

(1)HkkHkk ijek.kq vuqla/ku dsUnz] Vªkacs (egkjk"Vª)

(2)bfUnjk xka/h ijek.kq vuqla/ku osQUnz] dyiDde (rfeyukMq)

(3)mPp izkS|ksfxdh dsUnz] bUnkSj (eè; izns'k)

(4)ifjorZuh; ÅtkZ lkbDyksVªksu dsUnz dydÙkk (i- caxky)

HkkHkk ijek.kq vuqla/ku dsUnz & 1956 esa BARC }kjk ns'k dk igyk vuqla/ku fj,DVj v̂Iljk* 

fufeZr fd;k x;k 1985 esa 100 esxkokV dk fj,DVj /̂zqo* fodflr fd;k x;k BARC ds ikl 100 

esxkokV dk /zqo 40 essxkokV dk fljl 1 esxkokV dk v̂Iljk* vkSj 'kwU; ÅtkZ ijh{k.k dk îwf.kZek* uke 

ls pkj fj,DVjksa dh J̀a[kyk gS bu fj,DVjksa dk fMtkbu] vè;;u] vuqla/ku] jsfM;ksLVksIl ds mRiknu 

vkSj dfeZd izf'k{k.k ds fy, iz;ksx fd;k tkrk gSA BARC jksxksa dh igpku vkSj mipkj esa iz;qDr 

jsfM;kssLVkssIl mRiknu esa Hkh ,f'k;k ds izeq[k dsUnzksa esa ls ,d gSA ns'k esaa mRikfnr jsfM;ksiQkekZL;wfVdYl ls 

gj o"kZ yxHkx 6 yk[k jkssfx;ksa dks ykHk gksrk gS blds vykok fodj.k vk/kfjr rduhd dk iQly 

lq/kj ,oa [kk|&laj{k.k ,oa izlaLdj.k esa Hkh iz;ksx fd;k tk jgk gSA

dyiDde dssUnz & iQkLV&czhMj fj,DVj izkS|ksfxdh ls lEc¼ vuqla/ku ,oa fodkl dk;ZØeksa esa 

layXu gSA 1985 esaa blls ,d 10-5 esxkokV pkfyr iQkLV&czhMj&fj,Dvj esa dk;Z djuk 'kq: fd;k gSSA

Activity 2

ijek.kq lajpuk rFkk LiSDVªeksa dh mRifr

vuqla/ku ,oa fodkl rFkk blds iz;ksx 
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bankSj dsUnz & ystj vkSj ,fDlysVjj ls lEca¼ vuqla/ku ,oa fodkl dk;ksZ esa yxk gqvk gSA bl dsUnz us 

dbZ fdLeksa ds yslj fodflr fd, gSaA 

lgk;rk ikus okys laLFkku & ijek.kq ÅtkZ dsUnz N vuqla/ku laLFkkuks dks iwjh vkfFkZr lgk;rk nsrk gSA 

;s laLFkku cqfu;knh foKku es mPp vuqla/ku dk dk;Z dj jgs gSa os laLFkku gSa& VkVk cqfu;knh 'kks/ 

laLFkku eqacbZ] lkgk ijek.kq HkkSfrdh laLFkku] dydÙkk] VkVk eseksfj;y dsUnz] eqacbZ] esgrk xf.kr vkSj 

HkkSfrdh laLFkku] bykgkckn] HkkSfrd laLFkku] Hkqous'oj rFkk 'kfDr vuqla/ku laLFkku] psUubZA

lkoZtfud {ks=k ds izfr"Bku & foKku vkSj rduhdh foHkkx ds vUrxZr] bf.M;u jssvj vFlZ fy- Fkksfj;r 

l;U=k] eqacbZ bR;kfn dk lapkyu djrk gSA gSnjkckn fLFkr Hkkjrh; bySDVªksfuDl fu- fy- dEI;wVj mRiknu 

es izeq[k laLFkku j[krk gSA blds vfrfjDr] ;g fuxe 'osr ';ke rFkk jaxhu Vsyhfotu lsVksa ds fuekZ.k 

rFkk vU; mPp rduhd vk/kfjr bySDVªkWfuDl midj.kksa dh t:jr iwjh djrk gSA

Technology, variable, aided, research, electronic devices, processing

There are four main centres of atomic research and development in India—

(i) Why should a translator possess the knowledge of scientific literature in translating 

the above report?

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

(ii) Are their words and expressions that are not available either in the above Source Text 

and Target Text (TT)? Explain

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

(iii) Comment on the difference in the scientific expressions in the Source Text and the 

Target Text (TT)?

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

Atomic Research and Development
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(iv) What are the features of technical register to be found in the Source Text (ST)? Give 

examples.

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

(v) Are these features of technical register maintained equally in translation? Explain.

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

Technical reports are written with a view to provide specific information to specific 

audience. A translator of such reports should first have a clear idea about the purpose of 

report writing, the difference between a technical report and other information-specific 

writings. 

While reading the report in the Source Text (ST), you may have noticed how all the 

constituents of language are considerably different than those of literary writings. Not 

only the language but the very attitude of writing would appreciably determine the way 

such reports are written or translated. 

(a) Read the following factual description.

(b) Complete its translation using words given in the box.

(c) Answer the questions that follow.

bl i¼fr esa lkr ewy ek=kd rFkk nks iwjd ewy ek=kd iz;qDr fd, tkrs gS lkr ewy ek=kd gSa & 

(1) ehVj (yEckbZ ds fy,)] (2) fdyksxzke (nzO;eku ds fy,)] (3) lsd.M (le; osQ fy,)] 

(4) osQfYou (rki ds fy,)] (5) ,sfEi;j (fo|qr/kjk ds fy,)] (6) osQfUMyk (T;ksfr rhozrk ds 

fy,)] (7) eksy (inkFkZ dh ek=kk ds fy,)] iwjd ewy gSa& (1) jsfM;u (ryh; dks.k ds fy,) rFkk 

(2) LVsjsfM;u (?ku dks.k osQ fy,)

Activity 3

vUrjkZ"Vªh; ek=kd i¼fr (System Internationale (S.I.) of Units) &



Dimensional Analysis

Activity 4

(S.I Units or International System of Units)

mass, current, fundamental units, substance, supplementary units

(i) What is factual description?

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

(i) What should be the quality of a translator of factual description?

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

(i) Comment on the differences in the language structure of the Source text (ST) and the 

Target Text (TT)?

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

A factual description is writing that describes a person, an event or a situation and does so 

consistently. A technical factual description, generally, describes a concept, an event or a 

scientific situation. As in the case of the translation of other forms of technical register, a 

translator of factual report should possess an expert understanding of the purpose of 

technical report and the language specific to such reports. 

(a) Read the following chart.

(b) Translate the chart.

(c) Answer the questions that follow.
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lkSje.My osQ xzgksa ls lEcfU/r mi;ksxh tkudkjh

xzg lw;Z ls nwjhifjHkze.k dh ifjHkze.k d{k ij >qdkoO;klmixzg

(djksM+ fdeh)vof/  dh vof/ (va'kksa esa)(fdeh esa)

1- cq/ 5-77 88 fnu 59 fnu 28 4880 0

2- 'kqØ10-82 224-7 fnu &243 fnu 3 12404 0

3- ìFoh 14-96365-26 fnu23 ?k- 56 fe- 23 ls- 0 12756 1

4-eaxy22-79 687 fnu24 ?k- 37 fe- 23 ls- 1-9 6787 2

5-c̀gLifr77-83 11-86 o"kZ 9 ?k- 50 fe- 30 ls- 1-3 14280016

6- 'kfu 142-70 29-46 o"kZ 10 ?k- 40 fe- 2-5 12000021

7- v#.k 286-96 84-01 o"kZ &11 ?k.Vs 8 5180015

8- o#.k 449-66164-08 o"kZ 16 ?k.Vs 1-8 49500 8

9- ;e 590-00247-07 o"kZ 6 fnu 9 ?k.Vs 17-2 3000 1

Important Information Related to Planets in the Solar System

(i) Why are charts required in scientific/technical literature?

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………
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(i) What skills should a translator of charts possess?

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

(i) Are the terms in the Source Text (ST) and the Target Text (TT) equivalent?

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

Technical charts are required to illustrate a concept or a description, and form a very 

important part of the technical register. Translators are required to render an exact copy 

of the chart in the Source Language (SL) into the Target Language (TL). As in the case of 

translation of other forms of technical register, translation of charts is possible only if the 

translator possesses the specific vocabulary used in the charts of both the Source Text (ST) 

and the Target Text (TT).

Information technology is, of course, the burgeoning field of the 21st century, and Korea is 

one of the giants in this field. Information technology presents a wide range of challenges, 

such as industry-specific words, acronyms, and code-which Consulting and Translation 

Service, Inc. translators have considerable skill in conveying.

Doctors and healthcare facilities have trusted  their medical translation projects to 

Korean Consulting and Translation Service, Inc. for many years. With medical translation, 

lives are at stake. Our translators often have direct experience working in the medical 

field, allowing them to convey not just the facts and the words of medical literature, but 

also its spirit and intent.

The only creativity involved with patents is the creativity of the inventor. Patent 

document translation does not allow for any subtleties or creativity. At Korean Consulting 

and Translation Service, Inc., we know that money and reputation are predicated on the 

fact that patent documents are absolutely accurate text descriptions.

Form of Technical register and Translation

Information Technology Translation

Korean Medical Translation

Korean Patent Translation
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Korean Legal Translation

Legal translation -

Technical translation -

There is more involved with the law than words. The law is an expression of man's desire to 

make just and predictable the irregularities of human life. With these higher ideals in 

mind, the Korean Consulting and Translation Service, Inc. legal translators have this 

experience. Whether informal communications such as e-mails or website copy, or 

memorandums or contracts, you will feel comfortable handling your Korean legal 

translation project over to Korean Consulting and Translation Service, Inc.

 contracts, government , legal documents, and birth certificates. 

 technical specifications, manuals, engineering.



End of Lesson- Review Questions

1. Comprehension

2. Application

rkez dh feJ /krq,¡

(a) How important is the translation of the different forms of technical register?

(b) What are the different challenges for the translator who has to translate any form of 

technical writing?

(c) What are the facts to be considered for the translation of the different forms of 

technical register?

(d) How should a process description be translated?'

(e) What is the function of technical report? 

(f) What should the language of factual description be, both in the Source Language (SL) 

and the Target Language (TL)?

(a) Read the following chart

(b) Translate it.

(c) Write a paragraph on the problems of translating this chart.

feJ /krq izfr'kr jpuk mi;ksx

ihry Cu : 60 - 80%  rFkk Zn : 20% - 40% crZu ,oa dkjrwl fuekZ.k

dk¡lk Cu : 75 - 90% rFkk Sn : 25% - 10% crZu] ewfrZ;k ,oa flDdk cukus esa

iQkLiQksjl czkUtCu : 84.75 - 90%, Sn : 5.15% xSyoSuksehVj cukus esa

rFkk P : 0.25 - 2.5%

teZu flYoj Cu : 50%, Zn : 25% rFkk Ni : 25% crZu cukus esa

,Y;qfefu;e czkUtCu : 80 - 90%, Al : 7 - 12% lLrs vkHkw"k.k pedhys lqugjs isaV]

rFkk Sn : 0 - 0.5% flDds] laj{kd nzoksa ds /kjd 

crZu

eksuy /krq Cu : 30%, Ni : 65% rFkk Re + Mn : 30% vEy iEi ,oa iEi /kjd ik=kksa

ds fuekZ.k esa

xu esVy Cu : 87%, Sn : 10% rFkk Zn : 3% rksi] lkaps] canwd lfgr vU;

vkXus;kL=k fuekZ.k esa

?kaVk /krq Cu : 80% rFkk Sn : 20% ?kafV;k¡ ,oa ?kfM+;ky cukus esa

351



                                                     Alloys of Copper

3. Writing Tasks- For your Portfolio

4. In groups of 5-6, choose a technical report, factual description, process 
description, and technical chart. Translate them, compare your 
translations and discuss the differences. On the basis of the final drafts of 
your translation write an essay on the translation of the forms of technical 
register.

(i) What are the different forms of technical register other than those discussed in the 

chapter?

(ii)  Select one such form of technical register, and translate it in groups of 5-6.

(iii) Write an essay on your experience of translating it. 
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Increasing globalization and internationalization has enhanced the demand for the 

expertise in business studies and skills in using business registers. Therefore, the 

translation of business registers has become a reality for people speaking and writing 

different languages to gain expertise in business. Poor translation hinders the business 

growth of a company globally. Leaving aside cultural differences adequate translation 

into the language of the target customers is the most commonly cited barrier for global 

brand management.

 Money talks, if that's true, then it better be understood in every language. Every business 

institution and organization understands that money is the greatest communicator in the 

world and that accurate business translations are indispensable toward making certain 

that communication is not infringed upon in any way. It is important that business 

documents are accurate and speak the same language as the customers speak in different 

parts of the world.

Businesses are facing greater pressure than ever before to market their products globally, 

but cultural and language differences are proving to be thorny barriers. There are now 

companies who sell their products on web, and more than half of global firms believe their 

online customer experience is not supported consistently in the languages across the 

world. Forrester, a marketing research company in its survey of when 161 senior 

marketers in the United States and Europe realised that translation issues were the 

concerns most companies cited attempting to manage brand image overseas.

Translation of business registers is not significant only with relation to big firms and 

companies who are global players but even for those national companies and local 

enterprises, translation is a crucial link in their business performances, as in any Indian 

market, you might see a heterogenous class of customers who understand a common 

language. Even in India, a number of non-English websites have come up lately and the 

demand of instant translation of technical and business literatures has increased 

manifold.

Banking and finance are two major areas of business translation. The spoken and written 

transactions in these fields are replete with specific terminologies. It is important for 

translation to be able to coin the right word in the Target Language for the term in the 

Source language.

Translation of
Business RegistersLesson 4
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Activity 1 : Match the terms in the Source Language (SL) with their 
counterparts in the Target Language correctly (TL). 

Ledger T+kCrh 

Deposit eglwy 

Debit mBko

Risk mNky

Bargain [kkrk

Share (in partnership) tek

Spurt ukes

Offtake tksf[ke

Forfeiture fnokyk

Impost lkSnk

Bankruptcy iÙkh

Terminologies like these are definitive in nature, and therefore, their exact equivalent in 

the Target Language should be given, otherwise there would be a great risk of 

misinformation, which would seriously hamper business. Industry-specefic translators are 

required who understand the subject matter truly so as to make the translations reliable. 

All translators should have access to dictionaries and terminologies ensuring that 

translation is both accurate and consistent  across even larger projects.

Interesting as it may seem, some of the business behaviours and practices have proverbial 

equivalents in Hindi. But these proverbs in Hindi are not translation of their English 

equivalents, but they have existed in the Indian business situation irrespective of 

whatever terms were used in the west for such practices. But now they can be equalled in 

the act of translation. But these proverbs do not change; they are not prone to 

interpretation  as literary proverbs are, though they are cultural. They are actually 

frozen. They were developed by the business pioneers in early India.

Source Language Target Language
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Activity 2 : Match the business expressions in English with their proverbial 
equivalents in Hindi :

Not profitable to use cV~Vs [kkrs fy[kuk

Declared bankrupt lk[k fxjuk

Silver prices crashed nykyh

To live off brokerage pk¡nh yq<dh

Loss of credit fnokyk fiV x;k

To write off viuk iM+rk ugha [kkrk

The Stock Market is another major field of Business Translation. It  is mostly a Computer 

Assisted Translation (CAT) or Machine Translation (MT). As in the case of technical 

registers, the meaning of most of the language of the business 'registers' are quite 

inherent in the original terminologies, and hence, as it were, the business 'registers' are 

transliterated. For example, observe the following graphs:

yxkrkj ik¡p fnu rd rst+h ds ckn] 'kqØokj dks ns'k ds izeq[k 'ks;j ckt+kjksa es ekewyh fxjkoV fn[kkbZ nhA

LVkd ekdsZV

English Hindi

ekdsZV dh lkaf[;dh

lSalsDl - 20206.95   -9.77

fuÝVh - 6079.70      -1.80

:i;k@MkWyj - 39.44          plus 0.10
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Market Statistics

SENSEX -  20206.95-      -9.77

NIFTY -  (6079.70)       -1.80

RS./ $- 39.44            plus 0.10

Texts for translation include various business documents like business letters, business 

proposals, meeting protocols, memoranda, balance sheets, reports, business orders, 

advertisements, marketing brochures, insurance related documents, cash flow 

statements, and important business articles. 

Translators of business registers have to pay special attention to structure and lay out. 

This is specialY true in case of the balance sheets. 

 XYZ Limited Company

oqQy fuf/ mi;ksx 70 yk[k :i;s 

C;kt nj 15 % okf"kZd

dj nj 45 %

bZ-ch-vkbZ-Vh- 6 yk[k :i;s

½.k 

fLFkfr I 5 yk[k :i;s

fLFkfr II 13 yk[k :i;s

fLFkfr III 'kwU;

Activity 3 : Read the following balance sheet, showing the capital structure of a 
company:

Stock Market
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Now complete the left column of the translated balance sheet using the terms 
and expressions given in the box: 

Activity  4 : Read the following business report:

Hkkjrh; fuxfer {ks=k }kjk cksul va'kksa ds fuxZeu rFkk ykHkka'k dh ?kks"k.kk

Situation I,           Situation II,        Situation III,                 Interest Rate,

 Debt,         Tax rate,            Total Funds Used,               EBIT

Company XYZ Limited

Rs. 70 lakh

15 % p.a

45 %

Rs. 6 lakh

Rs. 5lakh

Rs. 13 lakh

Nil

fuxfer Hkkjr us vius va'k/kfj;ksa ds fy, varfje ykHkka'k rFkk cksul va'kks ds fuxZeu esa viuh FkSfy;ksa 

dh Mksfj;ksa dks dkiQh <hyh dj fn;k gSA yxHkx 60 daifu;ksa us varfje ykHkka'k /ksf"kr Hkh dj fn;k gS 

;k tuojh ekl ds izFke rhu lIrkgksa esa ,slk djus dh ;kstuk dh ?kks"k.kk dj nh gSA blosQ vfrfjDr 12 

daifu;ksa us blh ekl esa tuojh 2006 esa yxHkx rhu xquk vf/d cksul va'kks ds fuxZeu dh ?kks"k.kk dh 

gSA

daifu;ksa osQ {ks=k esa va'k/kfj;ksa dks ykHkkafor djus dh dkiQh xqatkb'k gS vkSj blosQ fy, ykHkka'k Hkqxrku 

lcls ljy ,oa izR;{k :i gSA va'k/kfj;ksa dh leLr vk; esa ls jksdM+ Hkqxrku rFkk va'k/kfj;ksa osQ 

LVkd ds ewY;kadu esa larqyu cuk, j[kuk ,d vkn'kZ daiuh osQ fy, vko';d gksrk gSA

daifu;ksa }kjk va'k/kfj;ksa dk iqjLÑr djus dh fof/ ds :i esa dqy ykHk esa ls dqN jkf'k ykHkka'k ds 

:i esa nh tkrh gSA

cgqr lh daifu;ksa us va'k/kfj;ksa dks cksul va'k fuxZeu djus dh ?kks"k.kk Hkh dh gSA cgqr lh ,slh 

daifu;k¡ Hkh gSa ftUgksus igys ls gh cksul va'kkas dk fuxZeu dj fn;k gS ;k ;g ?kks"k.kk dj nh gS fd os 

vkxkeh cksMZ dh lHkk esa ,slk dj nsaxh os eè;e Lrjh; ;k y?kq Lrjh; daifu;k¡ gSA       
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(i) Underline the words and expression that are a part of the business register.

(ii) Find the equivalents for those words and expressions in the Target Language.

(iii) Are there some words or expressions which cannot be translated but have to be 

transliterated? What are they?

(iv) Translate the entire report into the Target Language. You may use the 

words/expressions given in the box below:

Shareholders,  dividends,      bonus,         shares, value,           stock,
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End of the Lesson-Review Questions 

1. Comprehension

2. Vocabulary- explain the following terms and concepts

3. Application 

a. What is business 'register'?

b. How important is business translation today?

 c. How does good translation affect a company's performance?

d. What are the major fields of business that require business translation?

e. How important is the understanding of subject matter and terminologies in 

business translation?

f. What is Computer Assisted Translation (CAT)?

g. How important are structure and layouts of a document in business translation?

a. globalization and internationalization

b. global brand management

c. target customers

d. heterogenous class of customers

e. Industry-specific translators 

f. Stock Market

g. meeting protocols

h. marketing brochures

i. lay out

(i) Read the following passage.

(ii) Read the prompts and complete the translation using words from the box given.

(iii) Answer the questions that follow.

foÙkh; izca/u esa ,d egRoiw.kZ fu.kZ; foÙkh; izk:i ls lacaf/r gS vFkok fuf/;ksa dks c<+kus esa fofHkUu lzksrksa ds 

mi;ksx dk vuqikrA LokfeRo ds vk/kj ij O;kolkf;d foÙk ds lzksrksa dks eksVs rkSj ij nks oxksZa es foHkkftr 

fd;k tk ldrk gSA tSls L̂okfexr fuf/* rFkk m̂/kj fy;k gqvk ;k xzghr fuf/*A Lokfexr fuf/ esa lerk 
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va'k iwokZf/dkj va'k rFkk lap; ,oa vf/D; vFkok izfr/kfjr miktZu lfEefyr gksrs gSaA xzghr fuf/ esa ½.k] 

½.ki=k] lkoZtfud tek vkfn lfEefyr gksrs gSaA budks cSad] vU; foÙkh; laLFkkvksa] ½.k i=k /kfj;ksa ,oa 

turk ls m/kj fy;k tk ldrk gSA

One of the important decision under …………………………………….………………………………   

………………………………………………………………………………………………….………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

debentures holder,     capital,      financial institutions

equity share 

I. Describe the above passage as business 'register'.

………………………………………………………………………….………………………………………………………

………………………………………………………………………….………………………………………………………

II. Point out the distinctiveness of business 'register' in terms of situation, purpose and 

audience as evident in the above passage and its translation.

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

………………………………………………………………………….………………………………………………………

………………………………………………………………………….……………………………………………………….

III. What problems specific to the translation of business translation did you face in the 

translation of the above passage?

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

………………………………………………………………………….………………………………………………………

………………………………………………………………………….……………………………………………………….

IV. As found in technical translation, does business translation also involve 

transliteration as evident from the translation of the above passage?

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

………………………………………………………………………….………………………………………………………

………………………………………………………………………….……………………………………………………….

(i) Read the following chart.

4. Writing Tasks for your Portfolio
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(ii) Translate the chart by writing  it in descriptive form. You may use the words given in 

the box.

(iii) Answer the questions that follow.

lalk/uksa dks tqVkuk

m|ferh; voljksa osQ fy, i;kZoj.k dh tk¡p djuk

mRikn@lsok dYiuk dk fodkl

dYiuk dh O;kogkfjdrk dk vkadyu ,oa O;olk; ;kstuk rS;kj djuk

dks"k iznku djus okyh bdkb;ksa dk ewY;kadu

ifj;kstuk dk fu/kZj.k ,oa ml ij dk;Z izkjaHk djuk

fodkl dk fu.kZ; ,oa mldk izca/u 

Resource mobilization,      entrepreneurial opportunities,      business plan

Funding agencies,     project commissioning,        management of growth

a. How effectively does a chart, or in other cases a graph, communicate a business 

message?

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

………………………………………………………………………….………………………………………………………

………………………………………………………………………….……………………………………………………….

b. How important is the translation of business documents?

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

………………………………………………………………………….………………………………………………………

………………………………………………………………………….……………………………………………………….

c. While describing the chart in the Target Language, what specific characterstics of 

the business register did you experience?

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………
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………………………………………………………………………….…………………………………………………….…

………………………………………………………………………….……………………………………………………….

d. What problems did you face in the translation of the above chart?

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

………………………………………………………………………….……………………………………………………….

………………………………………………………………………….……………………………………………………….

5. In groups of 5-6, select a business chart, a business graph and a business 
report and translate them into English. Exchange with other groups,  
improve and include it in your Portfolio.
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Business translation is a professional discipline. In the post-globalization era, where 

business is not confined in any particular region, business transactions involve readers and 

speakers of different mutually unintelligible languages. This has prompted great demand 

of professional business translators. In India, translation of business documents between 

Indian languages and English has become more important, this despite the fact that 

English is the official language in India. For nearly the last two decades, business 

translation has been facilitating communication between, for example, U.S.-based 

companies, governmental agencies, and organizations and their Indian peers.   

In this chapter, we are interested in the different forms of business translation. As there 

are different forms of business communication, so there are different forms of business 

translation. Translating business documents like reports, proposals and business 

agreements is a very serious undertaking. Though, understandably, business translation is 

not that creative but literal transference of meaning from the Source Language (SL) to the 

Target Language (TL), however it should not be viewed that in involves only word-by-word 

translation of text from one language to another. In actual practice, it involves moving the 

soul of a text into a different body. If a business person needs to be creative, so should be a 

business translator. However, unlike literary translation, there is not much scope for 

modulation of the meaning of the Source Text (ST)

Business translation can be done through machine translation as well. There are 

especially designed translation software that translates directly in Word, Excel, 

PowerPoint, and Outlook. There are specialized dictionaries and glossaries that are 

generated through the computer to translate certain texts. However, Machine Translation 

(MT) or Computer Assisted Translation (CAT) is effective only in case of limited types of 

text. It is not a substitute to human translation. 

A business translator is as important as a business copywriter. He/she should have   

several qualities that any organization with a need for copywriting abilities will value. 

He/she should be detail-oriented. He/should have a strong sense for the power of copy, 

based on uncovering persuasive and unique selling propositions. And he/she should be 

able to translate a sales story or document in compelling yet conversational language.  

Further, he/she should exhibit a fundamental understanding of effective business 

communication. 

Lesson 5
Forms of 
Business TRANSLATION
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The different forms of business communication that a business translator generally gets to 

translate are 

 reports, letters, proposals, procedures, manuals, 

product catalogues, financial statements, newsletters, etc. 

 website and software localization, and key word 

optimization. 

(a) Read the following extract from a business report.

(b) Complete its translation.

(c) Answer the questions that follow.

osQoy vkbZ-ih-vks- (izkjafHkd turk izLrkouk) 

cktkj gh ugha gSa ftlesa gypy gS] cfYd vU; daifu;k¡ tks vf/dka'k NksVs ,oa e>ys vkdkj dh gSaA 

mUgksaus th-Mh-vkj- ds ekè;e ls dksi ,df=kr djus osQ fy, fons'kh cktkj esa 464 fefyu MkWyj 

(yxHkx 2040 djksM #) varjkZ"Vªh; cktkj ls th-Mh-vkj- osQ ekè;e ls ,df=kr dj fy, gSaA 2004 esa 

ukS daifu;ksa }kjk ,df=kr 228-6 fefy;u MkWyj ,oa 2003 esa pkj daifu;ksa }kjk tqVkbZ xbZ 63-09 

feyh;u MkWyj ls yxHkx nks xquk gSA yxHkx 20 daifu;k¡ vkus okys eghuksa esa ,d fcfy;u MkWyj ls Hkh 

vf/d dh jkf'k osQ th-Mh-vkj- b';w ykus osQ fy, rS;kj [kM+h gSA nwljh vksj ;|fi ,iQ-lh-lh-ch- 

(fons'kh djsalh ifjorZuh; ck¡M) b';w ds fy, daifu;ksa dh la[;k de gks jgh gS fiQj Hkh dbZ daifu;k¡ 

,iQ-lh-lh-ch-ds fy, nkSM+ esa 'kkfey gSaA bldk dkj.k fu;eksa ,oa rF;ksa ds mtkxj djus osQ laca/ esa 

<hy gSA mnkgj.k osQ fy, vkjrh MªXl fy- us ,iQ-lh-lh-ch- tkjh dj 12 feyh;u MkWyj ,df=kr djus 

dk fu.kZ; fy;k gSA

lcls egRoiw.kZ ckr ;g gS fd bl ckj NksVh ,oa e>yh daifu;k¡ NksVh jkf'k ds dks"k tqVkus ds fy, Hkh 

th-Mh-vkj- osQ ekxZ dks viuk jgh gSaA mnkgj.k osQ fy, vkWiVkljdV~l 20 feyh;u MkWyj] ;fn 5 

feyh;u MkWyj Hkh fey tk, rks Bhd jgsxk] osQ fodYi osQ lkFk osQ th-Mh-vkj- b';w ykus dk fu.kZ; 

fy;k gSA bl 'ks;j dk ewY; ch-,l-bZ- esa 17 ebZ 2004 dks 34 # ls c<+dj 160 # gks x;kA bl izdkj ls 

blesa 370 izfr'kr dh rsth vkbZA fofM;ksdksu baMLVªht ykW;dk ySCl] bafM;u vksojlht cSad] Js; 

baizQkLVªDpj iQkbusal] tqcyh,aV vkjxsuksfll] egkjk"Vª lhe ySl] ekWl fpi lseh daMDVlZ ,oa Ø;w¡ ckWl 

Hkh th-Mh-vkj- b';w dh ;kstuk cuk jgh gSA gky gh esa nks cSadks us UTI Bank (240 feyh;u MkWyj) 

,oa Central Bank(70feyh;u MkWyj) th-Mh-vkj- cktkj ls dks"k tqVk,A fons'kksa esa C;kt dh njksa esa 

òf¼ osQ dkj.k daifu;k¡ ,iQ-lh-lh-ch- dh rqyuk esa th-Mh-vkj- dks izkFkfedrk nsrh gSA

• Document translation: 

• Marketing materials. 

• Website localization:

 Activity 1

daifu;ksa esa th-Mh-vkj- izorZu djus dh izfrLi/kZ 



It is not the IPO (initial public offer) market ……………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

(a) What is the purpose of business report?

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

(b) Is it equally important for the translator to be conscious of the immediate purpose of 

the business report that he/she is translating? Explain

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

(c) What is the core sentence of the above business report? 

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

(d) Is it important for the translator to spend some time understanding and analyzing 

this core sentence? Explain.

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

(e) What difficulties did you face while translating the above business report? Give 

examples.

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

Companies now prefer GDR  over FCCB issues in view of the rise in interest rates 
abroad.
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Business reports are extremely important. They are a crucial means of communication 

between the company and their investors and public in general. Business reports carry a 

lot of vital information about the company. In the context of economies which have 

opened up to foreign investments, business reports play a great role in attracting the 

investors. Translation of business reports therefore is very crucial as they may eventually 

decide the success of the company in acquiring new investments in the competitive world 

market. Thus business reports are sensitive documents and the translation of the cohesive 

patterns would have consequences in the way the translated document is interpreted by 

the target readers. Business reports are of various types. Business reports that generally 

appear in the magazines and newspapers often describe important business events.  

Though a business report is a form of formal register, a translator has to do more than a 

mere literal translation. There exists a considerable difference in the attributes of the 

two languages. There are differences in lexical cohesive patterns between an original 

business report and its translation. Cohesive patterns are one of the key elements in 

holding the text together. These patterns may change as they are not immediately 

available to the translators in the Target Language. So what was originally an integral 

pattern of the Source Text may become an entirely different pattern in the Target Text. 

For instance, in the above report, the second paragraph begins in this manner: 

lcls egRoiw.kZ ckr ;g gS fd bl NksVh ,oa e>yh daifu;k¡ NksVh jkf'k osQ dks.k tqVkus osQ Hkh th-Mh-vkj- ekxZ 

dks viuka ...

This sentence may be translated into English as, 

One may have literally translated the first few words of the sentence as, “the most 

significant thing is that…….” But it would not be as appropriate. In the translation of 

any form of writing in Business register, there exists a scope of literal translation. 

However, there does exist structural differences between the Source Text (ST) and 

the Target Text (TT). 

A translator has to interpret and understand the central sentence carefully. The central 

sentence of any writing determines its complete progress. And then he/she should be 

aware of the various types of words and sentence linkages that may require recreation in 

the Target language.   Wrong choice of 'function words' or prepositions or auxiliary verbs, 

while trying to literally translate the report may prove undesirable. Every language has its 

own lexical cohesive pattern: set of interconnecting bond between the sentences. In 

other words, there is a bond, a connection that exists between sentences because of 

linkages, which the translator has to know both in the Source Language (SL) and the Target 

Language (TL). 

“Significantly, small and medium companies are now taking the GDR route to raise 

funds this time even for a  small amount.”
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Activity 2

xqIrk Vh daiuh

lnj cktkj] fnYyhA

(a) Read the following business letter. 

(b) Translate the letter into English.

(c) Answer the question that follow.

eSllZ xqIrk Vh daiuh]

Vh ,aM dkWiQh O;kikjh]

lnj cktkj] fnYyh&6

egksn;]

ge vkids n~okjk izsf"kr i=k fnukad 20 ebZ] 2008] gsrq vkidks /U;okn nsrs gSaA gesa vkidks 

lwfpr djrs gq, g"kZ gks jgk gS fd vki gesa izfr ekl 27000 iSfdV eky lIykbZ dj ldrs gSaA

orZeku Vh ekosZQV dh mFky&iqFky dks ns[krs gq, dherksa esa dkiQh mrkj&p<+ko vk jgk gSA 

ysfdu] fiQj Hkh ge rhu ekg osQ fy, djkj dj ysaxs rFkk ckn esa cktkj ds mrkj&p<+ko ij iqu% djkj 

dj ysaxsA

orZeku cktkj&ewY; tks gekjs chp eghusa ds fy, djkj gksxk] og gS :i, 300 izfr iSdsVA

geus vkidks rhu iSfdV lSEiy (ckuxha) osQ :i esa gokbZ&Mkd ls Hkst fn, gSa rFkk rhuksa iSfdV 

vyx&vyx  xq.koÙkk (cSSjkbVh) ds gSa vkSj mudk ewY; Hkh leku gSA

gesa iw.kZ vk'kk gS fd vkidks rhuksa gh iSfdV fey x, gksaxsA vki gesa izkfIr dh lwpuk 'kh?kz nsus 

dk d"V djsaxs] ftlls ge vkidks vius vafre (iQkbuy) djkj&elkSnk (MªkÝV) dks LohÑfr gsrq Hkst 

ik;saxsA 

xqIrk Vh daiuh 

fnYyh

fnukad % 26 ebZ 2008

(a) Before you began translating the above letter, was it important to understand the 

purpose of the letter in the Source Text (ST)? Why

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………



(b) As a translator, is it important to be aware of the conventions of business letter 

writing in both the Source Language (SL) and the Target Language (TL)? Explain.

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

(c) As a translator, do you need to be equally proficient in words, expressions and styles 

specific to business letter writing in both the Source Language (SL) and the Target 

Language (TL)? Discuss with examples.

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

(d) Does the Target Text (TT) achieve the formality of the Source Text (ST), or their 

remains some gap in the equivalence of the two texts?

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

Business letter  is a letter written in formal language, usually used when writing 

from one business organization to another, or for correspondence between such 

organizations and their customers, clients and other external parties. The overall 

style of letter will depend on the relationship between the parties concerned. A 

translator has to understand this relationship, only then would he/she able to 

achieve a perfect equivalence between the Source Text (ST) and its translation.

A business letter has to follow certain conventions in its format. Now, the translator, 

ofcourse knows that these conventions may either be same or different in the Source 

Language (SL) and the Target Language (TL). The above letter in the Source Language (SL) 

contains the following information in the following order: 

Letter head or sender's address 

Recipient's address 

Salutation or Greeting 

Message (body of the letter) 

Closing 

Signature, printed name, and position of sender 

Date of writing

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 
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In some situations, a business letter may also include the following optional information:

Enclosures (Encl:) 

Courtesy Copy 

You would observe that the date of writing comes last in order in Hindi business letter, the 

Source Text (ST), whereas in the Target Text (TT) in English, the date of writing always 

comes after the sender's address.   

Letter head or sender's address 

Date of writing 

Recipient's address 

Salutation or Greeting 

Message (body of the letter) 

Closing 

Signature, printed name and position of sender 

While most of the translation is literal carrying over of meaning from the Source Text (ST) 

to the Target Text (TT), the letter does have its own unique style of expression. Even the 

content as well as the word and sentence pattern of the Target Text (TT) may entail 

rearrangement. For instance, the first two sentences in the Source Text (ST) are,

ge vkiosQ n~okjk izsf"kr&i=k fnukad&20 ebZ] 2008] gsrq vkids /U;okn nsrs gSaA gesa vkidks lwfpr djrs gq, 

g"kZ gks jgk gS fd vki gesa izfrekl 2700 iSfdV eky lIykbZ dj ldrs gSaA

The sentences can be translated as,

“ We thank you for your letter of 20th May 2008

   We are pleased to inform you that we cab supply you any quantity upto 27000 packets 

every month.”

Naturally, every language has developed its own formal structure. A translator has to be 

good in knowing the conventions and styles of business letter in both the language that he 

is translating from and translating into. 

(a) Read the following business proposal.

(b) Complete its translation.

(c) Answer the questions that follow

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

 Activity 3
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tsñMCywñ,lñ jhek¡Mfyax lksY;w'ku daiuh]

10] nhi Vkoj] usg: Iysl] ubZ fnYyhA

nwjHkk"k & 011&246133133] 4] iSQDl (212) 24411331

Hkwis'k ljdkj]

MSSVkMkbUl]

15] LVªhV jksM] dksydrkA

fo"k; % x̀gdk;kZy; ds fuekZ.k gsrqA

egksn;]

vkiosQ vkoklh; ?kj dks nÝrj (dk;kZy;) esa LFkkukUrfjr (psat) djus ds fo"k; esa fnukad % 

10 ebZ] 2008] dks gekjh igyh ehfVaax gqbZ FkhA vkidks lwfpr djrs gq, [kq'kh gks jgh gS fd gekjh Vhe 

bl dk;Z dks djus essa iw.kZ l{ke gSA 12 ebZ ls ;g dk;Z vkjaHk dj fn;k tk;sxk] rFkk bls iw.kZ djus esa 

pkj lIrkg dk le; yxsxkA

ge ljdkj n~okjk izekf.kr ykblsal /kjd iw.kZ LVkiQ miyC/ djk;saxs vkSj dk;Z&lwph ds 

vuqlkj izFke dk;Z iwjk djk;saxs rFkk geus orZeku esa tks dk;Z fd, gSa mldh dk;Z&lwph Hkh nsaxsA 

tsñMCywñ,lñ n~okjk fuEufyf[kr dk;Z fd;k tk;sxkA

mRrj fn'kk esa nks vyx&vyx HkaMkj&d{k (LVksj :e) ftudk jkLrk cSBd&d{k (fyfoax 

:e) ls gksxk] ftls cukus ds fy, foHkktd&nhokj yxkbZ tk;sxhA ;g jkLrk 3x2 iQhV = 6 

iSuy ds njoktksa ls cuk;k tk,xk rFkk lHkh [kjkc ;wfuVksa dks gVk fn;k tk,xkA

cSBd&d{k (fyfoax&:e) ds nf{k.k&if'pe dh vksj ls vkus ds jkLrs ij 3iqQV nksgjs (Mcy) 

izsQap njoktksa dk izko/ku fd;k tk,xk vkSj vko';drkuqlkj dkV&Nk¡V dh tk,xhA

Nr esa csgrj jks'kuh ds fy, leqfpr fon~;qr midj.kksa dk izko/ku Hkh fd;k tk,xk A 

cSBd&d{k esa BaMh gok dk Hkh izko/ku fd;k tk,xkA

nÝrj (dk;kZy;) dh lkjh lrgkssa ij jksxu fd;k tk,xk vkSj vko';drkuqlkj dkV&Nk¡V Hkh 

dh tk,xhA

mi;Z--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

l

l

l

l
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JWS Remodeling Solutions 

                                      10 Deep Towers, Nehru Place, New Delhi

                               Phone: 011-246133134, Fax: (212) 24411331

May 11, 2008

Bhupesh Sarkar

Data Dimensions

15, Street Road

Kolkata

Sub: Proposal for Home Office Construction

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

Sincerely,

Vipin Dev

Director (Construction)

(a) How important is it for the translator to keep in mind the supposed reader of the 

business proposal while translating it?

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

(b) To what extent does the subject of the business proposal determine the text of the 

Target Text (TT)?

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………



(c) To what extent does the choice of word pattern differ in the Source Text (ST) and the 

Target Text (TT)?

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

(d) Is word-to-word translation possible throughout while transferring the content from 

the Source Text to the Target Text (TT)? Explain.

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

As a translator one has to understand that a business proposal is an offering from a seller 

to a prospective buyer. Hence, as much as the writer the translator also has to consider 

the interest of the buyer. Only then he/she would be able to recreate the content where 

literal translation is difficult. Proposals can range in size from a one page letter, or price 

list, to several hundred pages of detailed specifications. In the business sales process, the 

written proposal is the vehicle that carries the terms of an agreement between buyer and 

seller, and forms the basis for a subsequent business contract. When a proposed offer is 

accepted by the buyer, it creates a legally binding document for both parties, buyer and 

seller.

A properly translated  proposal will put the buyer's requirements into a context that 

favors the sellers products and services, educating the prospective client about the full 

nature of his or her needs and the capabilities of the seller in satisfying those needs. 

Therefore, the translator has to meticulously render the details of the Source Text (ST)  

into the Target Language (TL). Often, a prospective client may be aware of only a portion 

of their needs, or they may be unaware of what the market has to offer to meet their 

needs. Good translation  plays an important role in finalizing the proposal.  A translator 

has therefore to know the basic components of the business proposal:

an orientation to the seller's capabilities or products 

a discussion of key issues 

a description of the seller's offering and related benefits 

(a) Read the following extract from a newsletter.

(b) Complete its translation with the help of the keywords given.

(c) Answer the questions that follow.

•

•

•

Activity 4
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la;qDr miØe&Hkkjrh vkSj ,;jVsy

Hkkjrh vkSj ,;jVsy o"kZ 2005 esa nwjlapkj {ks=k esa vxz.kh jgs gSA ,;jVsy 15 feyh;u xzkgdksa ds lkFk 

Hkkjrh miØe gSA chVsy ,d VsyhiQksu izdkj ds fu;a=k.k esa vius vki dks cqfu;knh Lrj ij ySaMykbZu ls 

oknkrk osQ :i esa lqǹ<+ fd;k gSA lu 1999 esa Hkkjrh VsyhlkWÝV fo'o Hkj esa ewY; c̀f¼r lsok vkSj 

ok;jysl vkSj ok;jykbu midj.kksa dh leL;k lek/ku ds mís'; ls LFkkfir fd;k x;kA orZeku esa 

bldh 25 ns'kksa esa 100 usVodksZa vkSj 50 feyh;u miHkksDrk dks fctyh vkiwfrZ esa mifLFkfr ntZ gSA ;g 

ckálzksrhdj.k ckzaMosxu }kjk VsyhVsd lfoZlst bafM;k dks Hkkjrh vkSj VssyhVsd gksfYMax ds chp djkj esa 

miHkksDrk vkSj VsyhVsd gksfYMax ds chp ,d djkj esa miHkksDrk vkSj dk;kZy; leL;k fuokj.k djsxkA 

ckárktkiwQM] Hkkjrh; us ,yjks ds lkFk esa rktk Ñf"k mYiknksa dk ;wjksi vkSj ;w,l, ds cktkjksa esa fu;kZr 

djsxkA

Venture, wireline carriers, subscribers, collaboration, 

customer solutions, back-office support

Joint…………………………………………………………

Bharati and Airtel entered 2005 as the biggest players in the telecom sector 

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

(i) What is the purpose of the above extract?

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

(ii) Does the translation of the above extract require an understanding of the specific 

form of business register, which is a newsletter?

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………
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(iii) To what extent is translation of the above extract governed by the audience who 

would read it? Discuss

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

(iv) Discuss some of the difficulties in translating the above extracts

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

(v) While translating, did you notice that some expressions needed a change in language 

structure?

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

While translating the above extract from a newsletter, you may have noticed its distinct 

form. It is close to being a business report, but it is not a business report. If a translator is 

aware of the nature of its form, translation would become easier and effective for him. 

He/she would understand the exact objectives  of translation. Newsletters are published 

by clubs, societies, associations, and businesses, especially companies, to provide 

information of interest to their members, customers or employees. Some newsletters are 

created as money-making ventures and sold directly to subscribers. Sending newsletters 

to customers and prospects is a common marketing strategy. General attributes of 

newsletters include news and upcoming events of the related organization, as well as 

contact information for general inquiries.

The objective of the above newsletter extract is information as well as promotion of 

business interests among the target customers. The translator has to be very much 

conscious of this fact. Then only he would be able to transfer the intended meaning of the 

Source Text (ST)  to the Target Text (TT). Hence, the translation would be partly literal 

and partly recreated. 

(a) Read the following financial statements.

(b) Complete their translation.

(c) Answer the questions that follow.

 Activity 5
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Hkkjr dk fu;kZr oLrqvksa dk la;kstu

Commodity Composition of India's Exports

mRikn @ oLrq,¡ izfr'kr Hkkx

2002&03 2003&04

(d)izkFkfed mRiknu @ oLrq,¡ 16-6 15-5

& Ñf"k ,oa Ñf"k tud 12-8 11-8

& dPpk yksgk ,oa [kfut inkFkZ 3-8 3-7

([k)fufeZr oLrq,¡ 76-6 76-0

& diM+k&rS;kj oL=k Hkh lfEefyr gS 21-1 19-0

& jRu ,oa xgus 17-2 16-6

& bathfu;fjax oLrq,¡ @ lkeku 17-2 19-4

& jlk;u ,oa lacf/r oLrq,¡ 14-2 14-8

& peM+k ,oa peM+sa ls cuk lkeku 3-5 3-4

(x)iSVªksfy;e] dPpk ,oa blls tqM+s mRikn 4-9 5-6

(?k)vU; 1-9 2-9 



(a) Why is the translation of financial statements important 

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

(b) Do you think translating financial statements is simpler that translating other forms 

of business register?

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

(c) Are there differences in the word pattern of the business terminolgy in the Source 

Text (ST)  and the Target Text (TT)? If yes, give reasons.

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

Financial statements provide an overview of a business' financial condition in both short 

and long term. There are four basic financial statements:

also referred to as statement of financial position or condition, 

reports on a company's assets, liabilities and net equity as of a given point in 

time. 

also referred to as Profit and Loss statement (or a "P&L"), 

reports on a company's results of operations over a period of time. 

explains the changes in a company's retained 

earnings over the reporting period. 

reports on a company's cash flow activities, 

particularly its operating, investing and financing activities. 

For large corporations, these statements are often complex and may include an extensive 

set of notes to the financial statements  and management discussion and analysis. The 

notes typically describe each item on the balance sheet, income statement and cash flow 

statement in further detail. Notes to financial statements are considered an integral part 

of the financial statements. 

The objective of financial statements is to provide information about the financial 

strength, performance and changes in financial position of an enterprise that is useful to a 

wide range of users in making economic decisions. Financial statements should be 

• Balance Sheet: 

• Income statement: 

• Statement of retained earnings: 

• Statement of cash flows: 
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understandable, relevant, reliable and comparable. Reported assets, liabilities and 

equity are directly related to an organization's financial position. Reported income and 

expenses are directly related to an organization's financial performance.

 Financial translators should have significant expertise in understanding financial 

statements in one language, and translating it into another, including conversion from one 

set of national accounting principles to another. This high level of specialization allows 

them to cultivate in-depth knowledge of the accounting practices in each country 

forwhich they translate. 

As a translator, you should be able to produce financial statements tailored to a particular 

type of company activity (such as leasing, retailing, manufacturing or banking). 

You should be able to translate simple financial statements required for an international 

bid, a complete financial package for mergers and acquisitions, or international tender 

offers.

Most translations lie in the areas of: 

Income statements 

Balance sheets 

Cash-flow statements

Annual reports 

It is imperative for the financial translator to render the information given in the Source 

Text (ST) with exactitude in translation. Unlike translation of literary register, financial 

translation does not give the opportunity to express concepts and terms in descriptive 

language. The financial translator needs to possess exact financial vocabulary in both 

languages to succeed as a translator. 

•

•

•

•
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End of Lesson- Review Questions 

1. Comprehension

2. Vocabulary- Explain the following terms and concepts.

3. Application 

th-,-Vh-Vh- 1994 % izeq[k le>kSrk@djkj

l

l

l

l

(a) What is business translation?

(b) What is the scope of business translation in the post-globalization era?

(c) What are the different forms of business register?

(d) What are the qualities of a business translator?

(e) How important is the translation of business reports?

(f) What should a translator consider as important while translating a business 

letter?

(g) What is business proposal? 

(h) What is the purpose of translating financial statements?      

 (a) Literal transference

(b) Modulation of meaning

(c) Computer Assisted Translation (CAT)

(d) Document translation

(e) Cohesive patterns 

(a) Read the following business agreement

(b) Translate it using the expressions given  in the box

(c) Answer the questions that follow

dLVe ds fy, ewY;kadu ij le>kSrk vFkkZr ds varfuZ;e VII (dLVe dj ;ksX; ewY;kadu) 

fØ;kUo;u ij le>kSrk A

ynku iwoZ fujh{k.k djkjA

O;kikj ds rduhdh vojks/ djkjA

vk;kr ykblsaflax izfØ;k djkjA



l

l

l

l

LoPNrk ,oa ouLifr LoPNrk mik;ksa osQ ykxw djus ij le>kSrkA

lqj{kk mik;ksa ij le>kSrkA

lgk;rk ,oa le djus osQ mik;ksa ij le>kSrkA

mn~xe ls lacf/r fu;eksa ij le>kSrkA

GATT 1994: Major Agreements

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

…Custom valuation, pre-shipment, anti-dumping duties, subsidies, countervailing 

measures, Licensing procedures, safeguards, sanitary, phytosanitary 

(i) Does the translation of the above agreement require knowledge of the business 

register in the both Source Language (SL) and the Target Language (TL)? Explain

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

(ii) What difficulties will a translator face if he/she did not know the business register of 

any of the two languages involved in translation?

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

(iii) What is the difference in the language pattern of the Source Text (TT) and the Target 

Text (TT)?

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………
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4. Writing Tasks- For your Portfolio

oS/kfud ?kks"k.kk dk izk:i 

   Performa for Statutory Declaration

Form no. 1

The Companies Act. 1956

(a) Read the following business Performa

(b) Translate it using the words given in the box

(c) Answer the questions that follow

iQkeZ l- 1 daiuh vf/fu;e 1956

daiuh ds iath;u ds fy, vkosnu ij daiuh vf/fu;e 1956 dh vko';drk ds 

vuqikyu dh ?kks"k.kkA /kjk 33 (2) ds vuq:i

daiuh dk uke% eS- -----------------------------------

izLrqrhdj.k % lq'khy dqekj 

okVsaM ,adkMVsaV }kjk

eSa ---------------------------------] lk>h}kjk fof/or ,oa xaHkhjrk ls ?kks"k.kk djrk gw¡ fd eSa Hkkjr esa iw.kZdkfyd 

vH;kljr~ pkVsZM ,adkmVsaV gw¡ ,oa eSa ---------------------------------------- izk- fy- daiuh ds xBu ls tqM+k gw¡ ,oa 

daiuh vf/fu;e 1956 dh lHkh vko';drkvksa ,oa bl daiuh ds iath;r ls iwoZ ds fo'ks"k ,oa muds 

izklafxd fo"k;ksa ls lacf/r blesa fn;s x, fu;eksa dk vuqikyu fd;k x;k gS ,oa eSa ;g fof/or ?kks"k.kk] 

varjkRek ls bldks lR; ekurs gq, djrk gw¡A

LFkku % ubZ fnYyh

frfFk % 

pkVsZM ,dkmaVsaV

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………



Pursuant, presented by, formation, complied, registration

(i) Why are such business forms required to be translated?

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

(ii) Why is it important for the translator to know specific business vocabulary in both 

Source Language (SL) and Target Language (TL)?

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

(iii) Is their any difference in the overall linguistic structure of the Source Text (ST) and 

the Target Text?

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

5. In groups of 5-6, select a business report, a business proposal and a business 
letter, and translate them into English. Exchange with other groups, 
discuss the problems, improve them and include it in your portfolio
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End of the Unit- Review Questions

1. Comprehension

2. Read the following extracts and translate them in the space provided using 
the words/expressions  given in box given below each  extract.

a. What is difference between 'frozen', 'formal' and 'casual' 'registers'? Explain with 

examples.

b. How is a technical or business 'register' independent of the user of language?

c. How is the correct understanding and practice of different 'registers' important in    

speech and writing?

a. Why do cultural factors play no role in the technical or business translation?

b. How important is the role of dictionaries and glossaries of termonologies in technical 

and business translation?

c. What role does technical translation play in the growth of scientific-knowledge?

g. To what extent does the growth of business firms depend upon good  business 

translation?

a. oqQN nsj ds fy, eSa dfo Fkk 

iQVh&iqjkuh dforkvksa dh ejEer djrk gqvk 

lksprk gqvk dfork dh T+k:jr fdls gS 

oqQN nsj firk Fkk

vius cPpksa osQ fy,

T;knk ljy 'kCnksa dh [kkst djrk gqvk

dHkh vius firk dh udy Fkk

fd fli+ZQ vius iqj[kksa dh ijNkbZ

dqN nsj ukSdj Fkk lrdZ lgek gqvk 

cph jgs jksT+kh&jksVh dgrk gqvk

           tattered old poems,     imitation,     menial,     petrified,    subsistence

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

………………………………………………………………………….……………………………………………………….

………………………………………………………………………….……………………………………………………….



……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

………………………………………………………………………….……………………………………………………….

………………………………………………………………………….……………………………………………………….

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

………………………………………………………………………….……………………………………………………….

b. vxys lkseokj dh 'kke dks czsej us ysuk C;qdj ls dgk] ¶lM+d ij yksx T;knk rsth ls py jgs 

gSaA̧ ¶T;knk rsth ls\̧ ¶gk¡ gYdh&lh tYnh ls] fliZQ tjk lh] ysfdu T;knk rst py jgs gSA̧

¶ugha] fcYdqy ekewyh gŞ ] mlus dgk ¶phtsa lq/j jgh gSaA yksx tku jgs gSa fd o dgk¡ tk jgs gSA̧

vkSj ,d vkSj pht mlds è;ku esa vkbZ Fkh % dqN vkSjrsa vkSj vkneh lM+d ij [kM+s gq, Fks] vdsys] 

xqtjusokyksa ds Vksdrs gq,A

the following Monday evening, quite simple, hookers and pimps,    

           shabbily dressed      

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

………………………………………………………………………….……………………………………………………….

………………………………………………………………………….……………………………………………………….

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

c. laosnh lwpdkad ch- ,l- bZ- dks lwpdkad dk funsZ'k (;k ry) fpUg gSA pw¡fd ch- ,l- bZ- 

Hkkjrh; f}rh;d ckT+kkj dk ,d vxz.kh 'ks;j ckT+kkj cu pqdk gS] blfy, laosnh lwpdkad Hkh 

Hkkjrh; 'ks;j ckT+kkj dk ,d egÙoiw.kZ ladsrd cu pqdk gSA 'ks;j ckT+kkj dh fLFkfr ds ckjs esa 

fjiksZV djus ds fy, ;g cgqr tYnh&tYnh iz;qDr fd, tkus okyk ladsrd cu pqdk gSA ,d 

lwpdkad dk dsoy ,d dke gksrk gS ewY; xfr'khyrk dks idM+ukA bl rjg ls ,d 'ks;j 

lwpdkad 'ks;jksa dh ewY; xfr'khyrk dks iznf'kZr djsxk tcfd ca/i=k (ckaM) lwpadkd p<+rk 

(mBrk) gS rks ;g ladsr nsrk gS fd ckT+kkj cf<+;k dj jgk gSA pw¡fd ;g ekuk tkrk gS fd 'ks;j 

;gh izfrfcafcr djrs gSa tks daiuh Hkfo"; esa vftZr djus dh vis{kk j[krh gSA vr% ,d Åij 

mBrk lwpdkad og ladsr nsrk gS fd fuos'kdksa dks daifu;ksa ls csgrj dekbZ dh mEehn gSa] blds 

lkFk gh ;g Hkkjrh; vFkZO;oLFkk dks Hkh ekirk gSA ;fn Hkkjrh; daifu;ksa ls vPNk djus dh 

mEehn dh tkrh gS rks fuf'pr gh vFkZO;oLFkk dks Hkh vPNk gh djuk pkfg,A

sensex,            benchmark,      exchange,   Indian secondary market

          index,    price movement,     stock index,       bond index 
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……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

………………………………………………………………………….……………………………………………………….

………………………………………………………………………….……………………………………………………….

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………   

d. iqQÝiqQl ds vanj ekxZ NksVh vkSj ufydkvksa es foHkftr gks tkrk gS tks var esa xqCckjs tSlh jpuk esa 

varÑr gks tkrk gS ftls owQfidk dgrs gSaA dkfidk ,d lrg miyC/ djkrh gS ftlls xSlksa dk 

fofu;e gks ldrk gSA owQfidkvksa dh fHkfÙk esa :f/j okfgdkvksa dk foLrh.kZ tky gksrk gSA tSls 

ge izkjafHkd o"kksZa esa ns[k pqds gSa] tc ge 'okl vanj ysrs gSa] gekjh ilfy;k¡ Åij mBrh gSa vkSj 

gekjk Mk;kizQke piVk gks tkrk gS] blds ifj.kkeLo:i o{kxqfgdk cM+h gks tkrh gSA bl dkj.k 

ok;q iqQÝiqQl ds vanj pwl yh tkrh gS vkSj foLr̀r owQfidkvksa dks Hkj ysrh gSA :f/j 'ks"k 'kjhj ls 

dkcZu MkbvkWDlkbM owQfidkvksa esa Nksm+us ds fy, ykrk gSA owQfidk :f/j okfgdk dk :f/kj 

owQfidk ok;q ls vkWDlhtu ysdj 'kjhj dh lHkh dksf'kdkvksa rd igq¡pkrk gSA 'okl pØ ds le; 

tc ok;q vanj vkSj ckgj gksrh gS] iqQÝiqQl lnSo ok;q dk vof'k"V vk;ru j[krs gSa ftlls 

vkWDlhtu ds vo'kks"k.k rFkk dkcZu MkbZvkWDlkbZM ds ekspu ds fy, i;kZIr le; fey tkrk gSA

Lungs,  tubes, terminate, balloon-like structures, alveoli,                            

extensive network of blood vessels,         diaphragm,                chest cavity,     

sucked into lungs, blood vessels,         cells in the body,  

breathing cycle,                                              residual volume 

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

…………………………………………………………………………….……………………………………………………

….………………………………………………………………………….…………………………………………………

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

…………………………………………………………………………….……………………………………………………

….………………………………………………………………………….…………………………………………………

…….……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

(e) Åij crk, x, vuqlkj fd, tkus okys lank;ksa ds izfriQyLo:i] mDr iqLrd dh ik.Mqfyfi esa 

rFkk fp=kksa] iQksVks] js[kkfp=kksa] uD'kksa vkSj ik.Mqfyfi dks rS;kj djus esa ys[kd }kjk mi;ksx esa ykbZ 

xbZ vU; lkexzh esa LokfeRo vkSj iwjk izfrfyI;f/dkj (dkihjkbV)] izdk'kd esa fufgr gksxkA 

izdk'kd mDr iqLrd esa iw.kZ izfrfyI;f/dkj dk miHkksx djsxk vkSj mls fo'o ds fdlh Hkkx dk 

fdlh Hkh Hkk"kk esa vuqokn djus ;k la{ksi rS;kj djus dk ,dek=k vkSj vuU; vf/dkj gksxkA mDr 

iqLrd ds mRiknu] izdk'ku] izpkj vkSj foØ; dk lEiw.kZ vf/dkj izdk'kd esa fufgr gksxkA

in consideration of,    ownership,  copyright,    manuscript,    vest,  exclusive right 
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…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

…………………………………………………………………………….……………………………………………………

….………………………………………………………………………….…………………………………………………

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

…………………………………………………………………………….……………………………………………………

….………………………………………………………………………….…………………………………………………

…….……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

………………………………………………………………………………….………………………………………………

………………………………………………………………………………….………………………………………………   

(a) Technical Register ……………………………………………………………………………………………… 

………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….

(b) Business Register…………………………………………………………………………………………………… 

………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….

(c)  Literary Register…………………………………………………………………………………………………… 

………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….

(d) Legal Register …………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 

………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………. 

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………. 

………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….

(i) Technical Register……………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………..…………………………………………………………………

(ii) Business Register…………………………………………………………………………………………… 

……………………………………………………..…………………………………………………………………

(iii) Legal Register………………………………………………………………….……………………………… 

……………………………………………………..…………………………………………………………………

(iv) Literary Register……………………………………………………………………………………………… 

……………………………………………………..…………………………………………………………………

3. Classify the above extracts as:

4. On the basis of your translation of the above extracts, answer the following:

(a) Is the language of written communication register-specific? If yes, how? 

(b) Give a point or two about the distinctive characterstics of each register translated 

above
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(c) How different are problems of translating each register?

(d)  In what way does each register expect a different response from you as a reader?

(i) Technical Register…………………………………………………………………………………………… 

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

(ii) Business Register…………………………………………………………………………………………….  

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

(iii) Legal Register………………………………………………………………………………………………… 

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

(iv) Literary Register……………………………………………………………………………………………… 

……………………………………………………..…………………………………………………………………

 (i) Technical Register…………………………………………………………………………………………… 

……………………………………………………..…………………………………………………………………

(ii)  Business Register…………………………………………………………………………………………… 

……………………………………………………..…………………………………………………………………

(iii) Legal Register…………………………………………………………………………………………………. 

……………………………………………………..…………………………………………………………………

(iv) Literary Register……………………………………………………………………………………………. 

……………………………………………………..…………………………………………………………………

a. Choose technical and business texts of your choice.

b. Underline the words and sentences that suggest only specific use in technical or   

business language.

c. Write an essay in 150-200 words on the principles of technical and business 

translation.

Work in groups of four or five and do the following:

(a) Collect a bank statement, advertisement, instruction manual of a product, a poem, 

an extract of a short story, a scientific article from a science magazine.

(b) Discuss in groups the different aspects of language use in the various registers, like 

vocabulary, terminologies and sentence formation.

(c) Translate the pieces and compare your translation.

(d) Discuss the unique problems of translation related to each piece.

5. Writing Tasks- for the Portfolio

6. Project -Work
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